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SEGMENT REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET*

Financial Summary
Bt 5 g

BwEMSE 0 20 EB A

G

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total

BREREER FRBEREER Fok]
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
=2-——-F ~—ZT-TF ZEB-—-—§ —ZFT-FTF ZB--—-F —T-TF
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT BT T BEFT BT T BT
Hong Kong e 327,109 241,911 72,251 284,799 399,360 526,710
Australia SEOM 31,257 - - - 31,257 -
Macau P 15,285 - - - 15,285 -
Singapore #rhnsg 1,779 - 3,365 12,860 5,144 12,860
Mainland China ke ki) 411 - 384 2,250 795 2,250
Total i 375,841 241,911 76,000 299,909 451,841 541,820

* Include share of revenue of associates

Segment Revenue of Food and Beverages — Restaurant and Bar Business

* OBREMEBERARZIA

BRI BRA-BERBEBXEY

(Continuing Operations) (FEREER)
By Geographical Market RETIHZDE
2011 ‘ 2010

0.5%

4.1%

100%

[l Hong Kong a5
M Australia &)1
M Macau BP9

M Singapore FT 1%
M Mainland China /1 B Ath
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Financial Summary
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TIRAEERBERFBRE=ZA=T—"H1LZ
MEE RAff s RN EEREMTE

The following is a summary of the total assets, total liabilities, total equity,
share capital, results and other financial information of the Group as of year

ended 31 March for the last five years.

BRI o

Financials (HK$ Million) BKER (B¥EER) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Total assets BEE 410 503 626 717 749
Total liabilities waE 87 100 221 124 268
Total equity s 323 403 405 593 481
Non-controlling interests FEVE R 2 40 - - - 0.2
Shareholders’ funds BREES 283 403 405 593 481
Share capital &N
—in number (Million) —-HE(EER) 2,375 2,255 2,155 2,155 1,901
— in value (HK$0.05 per share) — A (FRE™0.057T) 119 113 108 108 95
Revenue WA 392* 538 ** 318 347*** 752
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity KRB RIERFEA
holders of the Company FEME ST (EE) 148 (22) (159) 26 34
Per Share Basis (HK cents) SFRETE GBI
Earnings/(loss) — Basic BF(BiE)—&EX 6.3 (1.0) (7.4) 1.2 1.9
Dividends f% 8 13.6** 0.6 0.2 1.0 0.7
Net asset value (excluding BEFECCTERE
non-controlling interests) FEPERR ) 11.9 17.9 18.8 27.5 25.3
Note: Pursuant to an ordinary resolution of the Company passed on 30 March 2010, the et REARARN _ZT—EF=A=THBBNZTER
issued and unissued share of HK$0.5 each has been subdivided into ten shares of FBE - BIRBBSITHE BT R ARBEITRMD B BIF
HK$0.05 each. The amounts presented have been adjusted to take into account of the WA TIRERBE0.05TT 2D - 25 2 HBLEE
share subdivision. FERZR D ITAIE L FAEE -
Revenue Shareholders’ funds
WA BRRES
(HKS$ Million B EET) (HKS$ Million B¥EET)

09

08 347***

07

Dividends per share

BRKE

w Net asset value per share (excluding non-controlling interests)
(HK cents /&1l

BREEFE(TEREFERER)

(HK cents 71l )

*  The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2011 decreased since the Group L BEZE——F=A=t+—ALEFEAEERNKAT
disposed of its branded coffee shop business during the year. BT AN B R F R E SRR E 2 o

** Following the Group’s acquisition of the remaining 51% of the equity interest in Igor’s in > FEEREBN T T NE = A UEE Igors#A T 51% AR
March 2009, Igor’s full-year revenue have been fully consolidated into the Group since the iz I§or’s HNE2FEWRABREA -_TTh,/ —TFH
fiscal year 2009/10. BEEESBEETARER -

*** The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2008 decreased since the Group o HEZDENF=ZA=ZF+—HIFEAEENHKAT
disposed of its computer and technology business during the year. KIBHRAEEREAEEBHE RERBARRER -

*0+ The dividend per share for the year ended 31 March 2011 represented special dividend e E R ——F =R =+-RAIFEZERRERZ
HK13.6 cents paid for the year. FEEINERB6BIWZFRIRE -
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Chairman’s Statement

+

o\

Hong Kong’s lifestyle food and beverages industry continued to
recover gradually during the 2010/11 financial year. The Group
made two major changes to its business portfolio within that
period, namely the disposal of 80% of our interest in Pacific Coffee
(Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries (together, the “Pacific Coffee
Companies”) to China Resources Enterprise, Limited (“CRE”),
which was completed in July 2010, and the merger of Igor’s and Cafe
Deco completed in December 2010.

The Group has retained its other 20% interest in the Pacific Coffee
Companies because we believe our partnership with CRE will allow
us to continue to benefit from Pacific Coffee’s ongoing growth —
thanks to CRE’s market network, commercial strength and retail
expertise in Mainland China — as well as the further expansion of its
network in other parts of Asia.

In December 2010, Igor’s merged with Cafe Deco. This resulted in
the Group holding a 60% interest in the new entity. As the Cafe Deco
brand is more widely recognised, it was later decided to call it the
Cafe Deco Group. The new entity has 40 outlets, including three large
and well-recognised restaurants: Cafe Deco Hong Kong, Cafe Deco
Macao and Cafe Sydney. The merger has significantly strengthened
the Group’s expertise and brand portfolio. Arguably, it has also
created Hong Kong’s largest western restaurant and bar operator.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited 6

%5 &iﬁﬁ\\zi

The merger of Igor’s and Cafe Deco will accelerate
the growth of the Cafe Deco Group in Hong Kong
and beyond. Our team will embrace the coming
challenges with commitment and dedication,
while leveraging on opportunities to continue
building our business in a prudent way.

Higors 14 8 B NN 2 B £ W1

o A B E R AR T

= 0B A R R R Y B mE
IS B R TR 25 -

BENRBHERITEN T -/ ——F 2§
BEERNEBERTSERE - FR AREHEXE
BHEIEFEMBAERRE IR T —FFL
A 5EX H & E 7 Pacific Coffee (Holdings) Limited
K E it /8 2~ 7] (& [ Pacific Coffee Companies |)
Z80% [ HE T E BRI XAR AR (TEA]) LR
TE-EFTATKIgorsBESEREZA
B o

K& B PA (R B Pacific Coffee Companies 2 20%
Mtk BRRARNEERE  BEFZANFTERA
e ALK FAEENRZEER  URE

DMEAMb R 2 E— P RRIER - AEEEE
BIE) & 1 A 50 4N 58 B 4 48 X 31X Pacific Coffee
ZEEER -

RZZE—ZTF+=F ' IgorsEBIESZEREAH -
HEAREER A ERMBEEEE DTS 60%
W% o P Cafe Decomm i 21 EZ AR - ¥
& (& B BE 1% 18 & Cafe Deco Group (1§ =& B8
£E) GEEFNERBERBER  BE=
MAAMZER: BEERER BMESE
2 S B M Cafe Sydney ° Z &R AEEHER K
MRS EURER - HHANFEHEE R
ARE 7 HERELEBEER -
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Chairman’s Statement

B

Besides being well positioned to grow further in Hong Kong by
opening new western restaurant and bar concepts, the Cafe Deco
Group has also begun to expand into Asian-themed businesses such
as Sakesan, a Japanese robatayaki and sake bar in Soho, and Pho
Yummie, a casual Vietnamese diner that will shortly open on the
Peak.

The Group withdrew from its involvement in a mining project in the
Philippines last November, and we do not believe the conditions are
right for us to make any further investments in the natural resources
sector in the near future.

Looking ahead, inflation and increasing rental costs will make
cost control more challenging. Moreover, implementation of the
minimum wage legislation will increase pressure on the Group’s
management concerning staff costs. However, we remain confident
that our team’s commitment and dedication will enable us to
embrace the challenges ahead and deliver another year of sustainable
growth. We will continue to expand our business presence in Hong
Kong in a prudent manner, and we will leverage on opportunities for
growth in Mainland China during the coming months.

In conclusion, I would like to take this opportunity to express my
gratitude to all those who have contributed to this year’s favourable
results. They include our loyal shareholders, my fellow directors, our
valued business partners and associates, our steadfast customers, and
— of course — our hardworking and dedicated staff. My sincere thanks
to you all.

BRRHAEIEHAER BB SR EBIELE—
HERIN BEREBSBTHRERZDMNE
REETE - WA B% 5 (@ A 7% Sakesan (B =\ /& i 152
ABERBRBEE)  ARBIEELTARZ A
R S 2 A F A Pho Yummie B FE ©

AEEREF+—ARE—EURIFREZK
EE;IE\E 'IHL\EJEIEH‘I‘ RTT{]D?& i:}ﬁ
BRRARBERESE -

REARIK - BIR KA 2 B £k (50 A A #22 1)
M b B R HBREL o ptHh - BieRIE TEFIE S
RASEZ BTRAERGERES - A - &

SERE BEBZHIIE BLBREASHRA
BB MEE YR REERFEER - £AK

BB EERRMBABTBZER  MERARK
FALESEAETRALZ EREE

Ri& - AABRUKERH R/ AFERRESE
ELBEERERZMAAL  XH -—BEXHAE
BHRR EFoA BEXBBHLEZER
A RREPUARE O T HREBERERHET
BAZROHHE

CHOW Yei Ching FrE
Chairman & 7R
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Management Discussion and Analysis
CEYVEE V&

The revenue from the Group’s ongoing operations during the year
under review amounted to HK$316 million, which was 33% or
HK$78.2 million more than what it achieved during the previous year.
The HK$147 million profit for the year included a loss of HK$52.6
million on ongoing operations and a significant profit of HK$199
million from discontinued operations, mainly due to a gain on the
disposal of 80% equity interest in the Pacific Coffee Companies. The
profit attributable to the Company’s equity holders was HK$148
million, compared with a loss of HK$22.1 million last year. The basic
loss per share on ongoing operations was HK2.21 cents, compared
with loss of HK1.22 cents last year, while the overall earnings per share
for the year was HK6.29 cents (2010: loss of HK1.02 cents).

CASUAL DINING

The Group strengthened its food and beverages business with the
merger of Cafe Deco and Igor’s in December 2010. This will position
it better to take advantage of the region’s fast-growing and lucrative
lifestyle food and beverages market.

Cafe Deco was founded in 1989. Before the merger, its portfolio of
casual dining brands included Cafe Deco Bar & Grill, Cafe Sydney,
Cafe Deco Macao, Sakesan, Peak Cafe Bar and Top Deck. Together
with Igor’s specialty restaurants and bars, the merged group offers
customers a wide range of western lifestyle food and beverages
experiences — from casual drinks to sophisticated dining. Since the
merger, the Directors have agreed that the new entity would in future
operate under the name of the Cafe Deco Group.

As of 31 March 2011, the Cafe Deco Group operated 40 outlets,
whereas Igor’s had 34 outlets prior to the merger. Because of the
opening of Berliner and Wildfire in Soho East, the total number of
Igor’s outlets was unchanged by the closure of the Wildfire airport
and the expiry of the Cavern lease during the financial year. After the
merger, Cafe Deco Group opened one new outlet.

REBEFE AEEZHELEEBFHEERA
BHE31618TT  BREFIER33% B 7,8208
T FEGMBEI147BETEREEESEER
B S 200 BT BHEMIEFBERKEEBAEL
1.99127T 7 8 A0 A1) (£ B B 72 & Pacific Coffee
Companies Z 80% AX # H) U 55 ) © N2 BB +5
EABEENEEE 1488 MEFLAES
BEEE22108 T - IRELEXEBME - 8K
ERBEA2218M - EF8) A1.2280: M
REEBRBZERANB629BIW(ZE—F
o EEL2BA) o

KEE
KB A - AREEBAHERE
B R Igors REIE B HUET MM EHEHR
R R 2 R o

SEBR—NN\NERL - REHAT - BIR
FERmEEE BIEERER « Cafe Sydney
JEPTIE =& BE - Sakesan  UTEEEBENE 2
EZE - ERIgorstHFEERBE - 50 5%
ErmEFRERFARMUNEBEER 2 E2HE
ARERBR a0 EFREHUERE
BEE/ERTENERIARREE -

RZE——F=A=+—H EBSEBESEK
Z40fEJESE - MIgorsi A BFRTAC & 348 JE 4 ©
AN TE 78 B 3 A & 5 & 7 5% Berliner & Wildfire
BB IgorsHEMARTEARVRFER
B8 EAWildfire# 5 & & Cavern 8 & Hi iy i IR &
ootk BRERSERKT @S-



Management Discussion and Analysis
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At the end of the financial year, the Cafe Deco Group’s outlets
consisted of 30 restaurants and bars, 7 Wildfire chain stores and
3 specialty kiosks. As a result of the merger and new projects, the
Group has extended the reach of its food and beverages business
into new localities, such as the Peak, Aberdeen and Soho East. It also
consolidated its presence in prime locations in Soho. Furthermore,
the Group has extended its business to the Australian market with
Cafe Sydney — a restaurant with an unparalleled vantage point
overlooking Sydney Harbour that has established itself as one of the
city’s top dining and entertainment venues for locals and tourists
alike. The Cafe Deco Group’s largest venue and one of the Asia’s
largest restaurants, Cafe Deco Macao is located at the crossroads
between the Venetian, one of Macau’s largest casinos, the world-
renowned Cirque Du Soleil Theatre and the entrance to the COTAI
convention and exhibition centre and entertainment arena. The Cafe
Deco Group also plans to gain a foothold in Mainland China in the
future.

The Group made vigorous efforts to increase its revenue and raise
awareness of its brand by partnering with a number of new media
and platforms such as Groupon, a deal-of-the-day website that
has amassed 35 million registered users worldwide. In addition,
merging the databases of the enlarged group’s loyalty programme
has boosted its operational effectiveness. Riding on the economy’s
recovery and the Group’s continued emphasis on branding, product
quality and services, same-store sales of Igor’s grew by 4.51% during
the year under review. After the integration, the Group will further
enhance its standardised back-office processes and human resources
allocation systems, with the view to creating greater efficiency and
synergy in its operations in the coming financial year.

Although the general economic outlook remains positive, and
the Australian dollar looks set to remain strong, the Group’s
management is keenly aware that food ingredient costs and Hong
Kong retail property rents are likely to continue rising in the coming
months. These factors could exert considerable downward pressure
on its profitability.

PACIFIC COFFEE

CRE has become the Group’s new strategic partner and the Pacific
Coffee Companies’ major shareholder. CRE’s presence will give
the Pacific Coffee Companies fresh opportunities to increase its
competitiveness, build up its brand, and expand its presence in
Mainland China more efficiently, due to CRE’s extensive network
and experience in the retail market there. The Group has retained
20% equity interest in the Pacific Coffee Companies, so it will
continue to benefit from the growth of its business in the coming
year. The Group has also retained a seat on the board of Pacific Coffee
(Holdings) Limited in order to continue providing strategic support.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited

REMBFEER  EREBEEZEHBE30M
ZEREEE - 7Ewildfire :E$#HE R3HFE/NR
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TRat IR ARREE R B ARETIS o
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2 RIR% - R EEEFE AN Igor's A5 5 E 5T
R451% - BE0FH1E - AEEBE - T NER
EEHEGRIERANERZS - LEXRTE
MREFEFETSNEENENMBRSER

HARBREENSIDALE - BRTUFHR
FoRY  AMASEEREERHRD - HEARED
BFRERHMAXAREETEMEHEE BT
FE LR - AFREAEERNNZE -

PACIFIC COFFEE

FERE AR B 2 BB & {ER 1 I Pacific
Coffee Companies < £ Z X H - RN ELIEH
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Management Profile

BHE AN

DR CHOW YEI CHING

Executive Director, Chairman, aged 75, is the founder of Chevalier Group
since 1970. He is the Chairman of Chevalier International Holdings Limited
(“CIHL”), a public company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and a substantial shareholder of the
Company. He is also a director of certain companies of the Group. He is
also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Towngas China Company
Limited and a Non-Executive Director of Television Broadcasts Limited.
In 1995, Dr Chow was awarded with an Honorary Degree of Doctor of
Business Administration by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and an
Honorary University Fellow by The University of Hong Kong. In 1997, he
was conferred an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Laws by The University of
Hong Kong. He is also a Consultative Professor of Zhejiang University and
a Lecture Professor of Sichuan Union University in Mainland China. In
2008, Dr Chow was awarded with an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Social
Science by City University of Hong Kong. Dr Chow’s enthusiasm in public
services is evidenced in his appointment in 2001 as the Vice Patron of The
Community Chest in Hong Kong. He was also appointed as the Honorary
Consul of The Kingdom of Bahrain in Hong Kong in 2001. He also actively
participates in various professional bodies and associations on fraternal and
Chinese affairs. To name a few, he is the Founding President of International
Ningbo Merchants Association Co Ltd, the President of The Japan Society of
Hong Kong and the Permanent Honorary President of the National Taiwan
University-HK Alumni Association, etc. In recognition of his contributions
to local and overseas societies alike, Dr Chow was awarded honorable
decorations from Britain, Belgium, France and Japan and especially the
Order of the Rising Sun, Gold Rays with Neck Ribbon in Japan in 2008.
Furthermore, Dr Chow was also awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star from the
Government of the HKSAR in 2004. He is the father of Mr Chow Vee Tsung,
Oscar and Miss Lily Chow, Managing Director and Executive Director
respectively of the Company.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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Management Profile
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MR CHOW VEE TSUNG, OSCAR

Executive Director, Managing Director, aged 37, joined Chevalier Group in
2000 and is the Executive Director of CIHL, a public company listed on the
Stock Exchange and a substantial shareholder of the Company. He is also
a director of certain companies of the Group. Mr Chow holds a degree in
Master of Engineering from the University of Oxford, U.K. He is currently
a General Committee Member of the Hong Kong General Chamber of
Commerce, a General Committee Member of the Chinese Manufacturers’
Association of Hong Kong and The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies. He is also a member of the Shanghai Committee of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC”) and a Committee
Member of the Advisory Council on the Environment, and a Committee
Member of the Infrastructure Development Advisory Committee of Hong
Kong Trade Development Council. Mr Chow is the son of Dr Chow Yei
Ching, the Chairman of the Company and the Chairman of CIHL and is also
a brother of Miss Lily Chow, an Executive Director of the Company.

MR KUOK HOI SANG

Executive Director, aged 61, joined Chevalier Group in 1972 and is the Vice
Chairman and Managing Director of CIHL, a public company listed on the
Stock Exchange and a substantial shareholder of the Company. He is also a
director of certain companies of the Group. He is the President of The Lift
and Escalator Contractors Association in Hong Kong, the Vice-Chairman
of the Hong Kong — China Branch of The International Association of
Elevator Engineers, Vice President of the Hong Kong Federation of Electrical
and Mechanical Contractors Limited and a Registered Lift and Escalator
Engineer in Hong Kong. He is a member of the Guangzhou Committee of
CPPCC. Mr Kuok has extensive experience in business development and is
responsible for the strategic planning and management of the operations of
lifts and escalators, building construction, building materials and supplies,
aluminium works, electrical and mechanical services, civil engineering,
property development as well as investment projects of Chevalier Group.

MISS LILY CHOW

Executive Director, aged 48, joined Chevalier Group in 1990. She is
responsible for strategic planning and business development of the Group.
She is the daughter of Dr Chow Yei Ching, the Chairman of the Company
and is also a sister of Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Managing Director of the
Company.
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Management Profile
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MR CHANG WAN LUNG, ROBERT
Executive Director, aged 47, joined Chevalier Group in 2005 as General
Manager of Business Development. Mr Chang is also a director of certain
companies of the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree of Science from
the University of San Francisco. Mr Chang is responsible to oversee the
operation of food and beverages of the Group.

MR WU KING CHEONG

Independent Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee
and chairman of the Remuneration Committee, aged 60, joined the
Company in 2002. He is an Executive Director of Lee Cheong Gold Dealers
Limited. He is also the Life Honorary Chairman of the Chinese General
Chamber of Commerce, as well as the Honorary Permanent President
of the Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange Society and the Permanent
Honorary President of the Hong Kong Securities Association Ltd.. He is
also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Yau Lee Holdings Limited,
Henderson Land Development Company Limited, Henderson Investment
Limited, Miramar Hotel and Investment Co., Ltd. and Hong Kong Ferry
(Holdings) Company Limited, all of which are companies listed on the Stock
Exchange.

MR LEUNG KWONG KIN, j.p.

Independent Non-Executive Director, chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee, aged 65, joined the
Company in 2008. He is a senior practicing director of Wong Lam Leung &
Kwok C.P.A. Limited. He is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Association of International Accountants. Mr Leung is also an associate
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong, the member of the Macau Society of Certified
Practising Accountants, the Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors,
the Chartered Management Institute and the International Institute of
Management. Mr Leung holds a Master of Business Administration Degree
from the University of East Asia, Macau (now known as “the University of
Macau”) and is an Independent Non-Executive Director of E. Bon Holdings
Limited which is listed on the Stock Exchange.

MR LAU KAI SHU, FRANK

Independent Non-Executive Director, member of the Audit Committee and
member of the Remuneration Committee, aged 68, joined the Company
in 2008. He was Director and General Manager, Alternate Chief Executive
of Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited until he retired in July 2004. He
possesses extensive knowledge and experience in the banking industry.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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Schedule of Property
W% & B
(ENG

Particulars of property held by the Group are as follows: REBZWEERET
Approximate
gross The Group’s
Location Usage floor area Lease term interest
1t 2 AR B A BHFH REH
HE Frib s
sq. ft. F 7R %
Hong Kong
g8
Flats A & B on 15/F and
Carparking Space No. L4 on 1/F,
Amiata Industrial Building,
58-64 Lei Muk Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories Warehouse 7,842 Medium 60
R 5R Hf
2Em
BARBR+N\ERT R
EXEKRE
THIZBARBER
— B L4EN
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Financial Review
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Revenue

The Group’s revenue rose by 33% from HK$238 million in 2010 to HK$316
million in 2011, mainly contributed by Cafe Deco since the acquisition of
60% of its equity interest in December 2010.

Gross Profit

Gross profit margin of the Group decreased from 84% last year to 78%
this year. Cost increase led to the drop of gross profit margin of Igor’s. The
comparatively lower gross profit margin of Cafe Deco also led to the decrease
in overall gross profit margin.

Other losses, net

Other losses, net increased from HK$28.7 million last year to HK$42.0
million this year. This was mainly due to the fair value loss of HK$10.0
million for the put option granted for 20% of the equity interest in the Pacific
Coffee Companies retained by the Group within three years.

Selling and distribution costs, and administrative expenses

Selling and distribution costs increased from HK$201 million last year to
HK$250 million this year while administrative expenses increased from
HK$3.2 million to HK$14.5 million. The total increase of HK$60.3 million
was mainly attributable to the operation expenses of Cafe Deco since
acquisition by the Group. Also, there was share option expense of HK$6.4
million for the consultant services received this year.

Share of results of associates
Share of results of associates was mainly attributable from the results of 20%
of the equity interest of the Pacific Coffee Companies retained by the Group.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The Group disposed of 80% of the equity interest in the Pacific Coffee
Companies in July 2010. The branded coffee shop business carried out by
the Pacific Coffee Companies up to the date of disposal and the HK$217
million gain on disposal of the 80% of the equity interest are presented in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group as discontinued operations.

Furthermore, in view of the current market environment, the Group has no
plan to explore further opportunities in the natural resources industry and
decided to discontinue this business during the year. The HK$21.7 million
loss is presented in the consolidated financial statements of the Group as
discontinued operations.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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Financial Review
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION

Intangible assets

Intangible assets decreased from HK$223 million last year to HK$95.6
million. This was mainly attributable by the disposal of 80% equity interest
of the Pacific Coffee Companies where HK$34.3 million of goodwill
and HK$99.0 million of trademark were disposed of. Also, a goodwill
impairment of HK$35.3 million was made during the year. These were
compensated by the increase in goodwill, trademarks and favourable leases of
HK$19.9 million, HK$13.6 million and HK$11.9 million respectively arising
from the acquisition of 60% of the equity interest of Cafe Deco.

Interests in associates

Interest in associates increased from HK$0.9 million last year to HK$57.1
million. This was mainly attributable by the 20% equity interest in the Pacific
Coffee Companies retained by the Group.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Investments at fair value through profit or loss increased substantially for
HK$26.2 million mainly because of the put option recognised at fair value for
sale of 20% of the equity interest in the Pacific Coffee Companies retained by
the Group.

Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances decreased from HK$112 million last year to
HK$85.5 million, due mainly to the dividends paid of HK$335 million but
compensated by the net cash received from the disposal of the Pacific Coffee
Companies of HK$297 million.

Non-controlling interests
The non-controlling interests mainly arose from the food and beverages
business upon the Share Exchange of the acquisition of Cafe Deco.

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS AND FINANCIAL RATIOS

As at 31 March 2011, the Group’s net assets attributable to equity holders
of the Company amounted to HK$283 million (2010: HK$403 million),
a decrease of HK$120 million or 30% when compared with 2010. Such
decrease was mainly caused by the profit attributable to equity holders of
HK$148 million, net proceeds of the issue of shares of HK$61.2 million,
offsetting by the 2010/11 special and 2009/10 final dividends of total HK$335
million paid during the year. At the end of the reporting year, the Group
had no bank borrowings (2010: HK$16.5 million). Cash and bank balances
amounted to HK$85.5 million (2010: HK$112 million).

Total debt to equity ratio was nil (2010: 4.1%) and net debt to equity ratio
was nil (2010: nil), which are expressed as a percentage of total borrowings
and net borrowings respectively, over the total equity of HK$323 million
(2010: HK$403 million).
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Financial Review
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BORROWINGS
The bank borrowings of HK$16.5 million as at 31 March 2010 were settled
during the year. There were no bank borrowings as at 31 March 2011.

CHARGE ON ASSETS
As at 31 March 2011 and 2010, there was no charge on assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2011 are set out in note 34
to the consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments as at 31 March 2011 are set out in note 35
to the consolidated financial statements.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial
management. To achieve better risk control and minimise cost of funds,
the Group’s treasury activities are centralised. Cash is generally placed in
short-term deposits mostly denominated in Hong Kong dollar, US dollar
and Australian dollar. The Group’s liquidity and financing requirements
are frequently reviewed. In anticipating new investments or maturity of
bank loans, the Group will consider new financing while maintaining an
appropriate level of gearing.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that they
are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and
maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of stakeholders and comply with the increasingly stringent
regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) came into effect on 1 January 2005. The CG Code sets out two
levels of corporate governance practices namely, mandatory code provisions
that a listed company must comply with or explain its non-compliance, and
recommended best practices that a listed company is encouraged to comply
with but need not disclose in the case of non-compliance. The Company is in
compliance with the mandatory code provisions of the CG Code except for
the following non-compliance:

All the Independent Non-Executive Directors are not appointed for a specific
term.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible leadership
for the Company. The directors, individually and collectively, must act
in good faith in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies, monitors and
evaluates its operating and financial performance and reviews the corporate
governance standard of the Company. It also decides on matters such as
annual and interim results, major transactions, director appointments or re-
appointment, and dividend and accounting policies. Management profile of
the Company as at the date of this report is set out on pages 12 to 14.

The Board comprises five Executive Directors and three Independent Non-
Executive Directors. The full Board met five times during the year under
review. The attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings and the Board
Committees Meetings is set out in the table below:
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors

=

Meetings Attended/Held
BRHEBITRE

Board
BEEg

Audit
Committee

EREES

Remuneration
Committee

FMESS

Executive Directors

HiTEE

Dr Chow Yei Ching (Chairman)

B IREE ()

Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar (Managing Director)
JEVHEIE St (B F A4 TE)

Mr Kuok Hoi Sang

28 L&

Miss Lily Chow

JE /N 4E

Mr Chang Wan Lung, Robert

RERESRLE

Miss Fan Amy Lizhen (resigned on 6 November 2010)
HBEE/MA(R=ZFE—FF+—ANHEHE)

Mr Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie (resigned on 6 November 2010)
RRBEEERW -_FE—FF+—ANHAET)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BILIHTEF

Mr Wu King Cheong

B EE

Mr Leung Kwong Kin

RERE

Mr Lau Kai Shu, Frank

1y e

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other relationships
with each other save for that Dr Chow is the father of Mr Chow Vee Tsung,

Oscar and Miss Lily Chow.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the
three Independent Non-Executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and concluded
that all the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent within

the definition of the Listing Rules.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Since the Board is involved in the appointment of new Directors, the
Company has not established a Nomination Committee. The Board will
take into consideration criteria such as expertise, experience, integrity and
commitment when considering new director appointments. All candidates
must also meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing
Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director should also meet the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company, all Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of
the Company. New Directors appointed by the Board during the year are
required to retire and submit themselves for re-election at the annual general
meeting or general meeting immediately following their appointments.
Further, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors, or, if
their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but
not less than one-third are required to retire from office by rotation and
no later than the third annual general meeting since the last re-election or
appointment of such Director.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The CG Code provision stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same person. The Chairman of the Company is Dr Chow Yei Ching and the
Managing Director is Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar. The role of the Chairman
is separate from that of the Managing Director. The Chairman is responsible
for overseeing the functioning of the Board while the Managing Director is
responsible for managing the Group’s businesses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 1998 with written terms of
reference. Mr Leung Kwong Kin, Independent Non-Executive Director, is
the Chairman of the committee. He has extensive experience in financial
reporting and controls. Other members include all other Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely, Mr Wu King Cheong and Mr Lau Kai Shu,
Frank. The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment of external
auditors, review of the Group’s financial information and oversight of the
Group’s financial reporting system, internal control procedures and risk
management frameworks. It is also responsible for reviewing the interim
and final results of the Group prior to recommending them to the Board for
approval. Its terms of reference are accessible on the Company’s website,
http://www.chevalier.com.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 March
2011. At the meetings, it reviewed the connected transactions (if any), the
interim results for the six months ended 30 September 2010 and last year’s
final results for the year ended 31 March 2010, and has reviewed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed the auditing, internal controls, financial reporting matters and
risk management systems of the Group. The final results for the year ended
31 March 2011 were reviewed by the Audit Committee in its meeting held on
30 May 2011. The Audit Committee of the Company regularly discusses with
the management the system of internal control to ensure an effective internal
control system.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 10 March 2005 with
written terms of reference. Mr Wu King Cheong is the Chairman of the
committee. Other members of the committee include Messrs Leung Kwong
Kin, Lau Kai Shu, Frank, Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar and Chang Wan Lung,
Robert. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing and
determining the compensation and benefits of the Directors and senior
management of the Company. Its terms of reference are accessible on the
Company’s website, http://www.chevalier.com.

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting during the year ended 31
March 2011 to review the remuneration packages paid to Directors and
senior management for the year ended 31 March 2011.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for implementing
its business strategies and managing the daily operations of the Group’s
business to an Executive Committee which was established in 1989. Members
of the Executive Committee comprise five Executive Directors, namely Dr
Chow Yei Ching, Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Mr Kuok Hoi Sang, Miss Lily
Chow and Mr Chang Wan Lung, Robert.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls in the Group. During the year, the Board has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control, covering
financial, operational, compliance control and risk management functions.
The Group’s system of internal control includes a defined management
structure with limits of authority, and is designed to help the Group achieve
its business objectives, safeguard its assets against unauthorised use or
disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for publication,
and ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The system is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate all risks of failure
in the Group’s operational systems and in the achievement of the Group’s
business objectives.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

The Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring the
internal controls of the Group and reports directly to the Chairman. It has
unrestricted access to review all aspects of the Group’s activities and internal
controls. It also conducts special audits of areas of concern identified by
Management or the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Department
adopts a risk-based audit approach. All audit reports are circulated to the
Audit Committee and key management. The Internal Audit Department is
also responsible for following up the implementation of recommendations
and corrective actions. The Audit Committee has free and direct access to the
Head of Internal Audit Department without reference to the Chairman of the
Board or management.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2011 on a
going concern basis.

The Auditor of the Company acknowledges their reporting responsibilities in
the independent auditor’s report on the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2011 as set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 33 to 34.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the financial year ended 31 March 2011, the fees paid/payable to the
auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the auditors
to the Group were as follows:

A 2B BE 12 ()
NBEEBEAEANANELEE L EEEEA
EUEENEIFEER TR TENAEES
FEMEERANEEEE  THEEERERE
BEWINEERITERER - BB
ARAANBEZRA - TEBRBREHETHER
ZESRTEEBEEN  ABERBTAERE
ERRBERREEENNT  BREE SRR
BN EEEREAMBANSESS EHERER
jgo

EENRHMERSMBRRNES

EFeRREREREEBE T ——F=A=1—
BEFEZGAEVBRRERRBBLENELR
8o

ARBZZHMERRAARRBE_T——F=
A=t ALFESAMBRRNETHNEBE
MEMB U ZBENREET -

BB 2 B &
BE-—Z——FZA=TALMRFER  Hi%
B BRI R 2 B R A S BUR S B S TR
TS emT :

Nature of services Amount (HK$’000)
PR & SE(BE TR
Audit services — PricewaterhouseCoopers 1% & iR 75 —BERUKEETAELA 1,974
— other auditors —E & 5HAD 78
Non-audit services ~ — PricewaterhouseCoopers — FE4#% E1R 7% —ZEERKEE T ERT 783
— other auditors —E & 5HAD 60

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry, each of the Directors
confirmed that he/she has complied with the Model Code throughout the
year.
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EEFRHEE

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group has always been practicing give-and-take spirit in the society,
actively performing corporate citizenship and focusing on environmental
protection so as to make contributions to the community. In the past year,
Cafe Deco Group sponsored HSBC Halloween Charity Parade 2011 aiming
to show the cancer patient group our encouragement and donated to the
Children’s Surgical Centre in Cambodia and the Community Chest of Hong
Kong through the campaign of one dollar charity surcharge per visit to
help more people in need. In addition, Pacific Coffee also puts emphasis on
making contributions to the charitable organizations by placing donation
boxes in every coffeehouse.

To demonstrate our care on environmental protection and at all times
achieving corporate goals through environmentally friendly means, Cafe
Deco Group also participated in “Earth Hour” 2011 Hong Kong to help
raising the awareness of global climate change, the lights in Lan Kwai Fong
outlets (Stormies, La Bodega, Marlin, Keg) were dimmed for one hour on
March 26, 2011 from 8:30pm to 9:30pm. Moving forward, the Group will
continue to fulfill corporate social responsibilities and values it as the basis of
the sustainable development and success of our businesses.

INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Group’s senior management maintains close communications with
investors, analysts, fund managers and the media by various channels
including individual interviews and meetings. The Group also responds
promptly to request for information and queries from the investors.

The Board also welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting
the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’ meetings to
communicate any concerns they might have with the Board or Management
directly.

The Company provides extensive information of the Group timely to the
shareholders and the public through the publication of interim and annual
reports, circulars, notices and announcements. The financial and other
information relating to the Group is disclosed on the Company’s website at
http://www.chevalier.com.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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Report of the Directors

EEGHREE

The Directors present to shareholders their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are shown on
note 41 and note 18 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

The Group’s revenue and results for the year ended 31 March 2011 analysed
by reportable segments are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2011 are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 36. The special dividend of HK13.6
cents per share was paid on 30 July 2010 and no interim dividend was paid
during the year. The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set out in
note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are
set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2011, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders amounted to HK$31.3 million (2010: HK$25.8 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year
are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

A financial summary and a financial review of the Group are shown on pages
2 to 3 and on pages 16 to 18 respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five largest suppliers accounted for 27% of the Group’s purchases
for the year whereas the five largest customers were less than 30% of the
Group’s revenue for the year. The largest supplier accounted for 8% of the
Group’s purchases and the largest customer was less than 30% of the Group’s
revenue. None of the Directors, their associates nor any shareholder (whom
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers or
five largest customers.
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Report of the Directors

EHGRESE

INFORMATION OF PROPERTY
Information of property of the Group as at 31 March 2011 is set out on page
15.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group employed 850 full-time staff under its subsidiaries globally as at
31 March 2011. Total staff costs amounted to HK$137 million for the year
ended 31 March 2011. The remuneration policies of the Group are reviewed
periodically on the basis of the nature of job, market trend, company
performance and individual performance. Other staff benefits include
bonuses awarded on a discretionary basis, medical schemes, retirement
schemes and employees’ share option scheme.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made donations of HK$3,500 to charitable
bodies.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws although there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in
Bermuda where the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities of the
Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Dr CHOW Yei Ching (Chairman)

Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar (Managing Director)

Mr KUOK Hoi Sang

Miss Lily CHOW

Mr CHANG Wan Lung, Robert

Miss FAN Amy Lizhen (resigned on 6 November 2010)

Mr CHEUNG Ka Heng, Frankie (resigned on 6 November 2010)
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr WU King Cheong

Mr LEUNG Kwong Kin

Mr LAU Kai Shu, Frank

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar,
Mr LEUNG Kwong Kin and Mr LAU Kai Shu, Frank shall retire from
office at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election. The Independent Non-Executive Directors are
subject to the same retirement requirements as the Executive Directors.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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Report of the Directors
HEREGRES

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director had a material interest subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors have an interest in any business
constituting a competing business to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN

SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2011, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the share, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations, within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”), which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be recorded in the
register to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

(a) Interests in the Company — Shares

EERGHRZER
RAFERFENEDREAALARERRA TR
LA ] B 2 ) o ) R B 28 ) 3 4 3 2T B
REEAEEZEH -

EENBRFUHEB o ER
FEA BEEFEARENMEABRBE T ZEH
hAE TR -

EERFETHARBZR S ER

MNZZE——F=ZA=+—H ARBBEERTET
BRABRARBIRERBAR(TELELLPEIE
BITBEHEREE KD BEXVER) ZRG « BEKRG
MEHPHEACIREES LIPS EHEXVIEE7
REsHEMEANF MBIz EERER(BE
RNABEERE il B 5 RS EOIESH T AL
BERAZESZRER) KM AVCLERIREER
ELHERNES 2GR TEATFEZ SRR
EEREE  RREZEETABENG ARG RBR
FroEmshEaumT :

(a) ARAEHE-RH

Number of ordinary shares

ZERROBAE

Approximate

Personal Corporate percentage

Name of Directors Capacity interests interests Total of interest

E=EE 4% BAERE DNEER By EEBA

%

CHOW Yei Ching Interest of controlled - 1,285,829,330* 1,285,829,330 54.14

J& TR corporation
SR NI £

KUOK Hoi Sang Beneficial owner 24,000,000 - 24,000,000 1.01
BEE EZEAA

CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar Beneficial owner 174,120,000 - 174,120,000 7.33
JA 4 1E EZEAA

* Dr CHOW Yei Ching has notified the Company that under the SFO, he was deemed to be
interested in 1,285,829,330 shares of the Company which were held by CIHL as Dr Chow
beneficially owned 154,682,359 shares in CIHL, representing approximately 55.73% of the
issued share capital of CIHL. Dr Chow was deemed to be interested in these shares under
the SFO and these shares were same as those shares disclosed in the section “Substantial
Shareholders’ Interests in Securities” below.

Annual Report 2011 27

* FENENE £ 25 3E B 154,682,359 AR AE 19 - 15 LB
fRAK55.73%  RIBZBFREE KO AR T HRAERH
TEBREE 2 AR TR 1,285,829,330 fk 2 #Ezs 0 A LI
BRUEMAREMEL MG - ZERMNETRIFEZRRZEHFE
=] Pz B AE R

R -—FFR



Report of the Directors

EHGRESE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

(b) Interests in Associated Corporation — Shares

EERIRTHRABZE SRS @)
(b) AR = -

Number of ordinary shares

EBERROEE

Approximate

Associated Personal percentage

Name of Directors corporation Capacity interests Total of interest

ExEE EL N &1 (PN £ By EEHY

%

CHOW Yei Ching CIHL Beneficial owner 154,682,359 154,682,359 55.73
J& R H L ERER BEREAA

KUOK Hoi Sang CIHL Beneficial owner 98,216 98,216 0.04
BgE H L ERER EREAA

Save as disclosed above and in “Share Option Scheme” below, as at 31
March 2011, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief executives of
the Company, no other person has interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he is taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO);
or are required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the
register referred to therein, or are required, pursuant to the Model Code, to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme of the Company (the “CPHL Scheme”) was approved
by the shareholders of CIHL and shareholders of the Company on 20
September 2002. The CPHL Scheme fully comply with Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules. During the year, no share option was granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed under the CPHL Scheme. There was no outstanding
option under the CPHL Scheme at the beginning and at the end of the year.

Particulars of the CPHL Scheme are set out in note 37(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

EHGRESE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director offering for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Apart from the management agreement entered into with CIHL Group as set
out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements, no other contract of
significance concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was entered into or subsisted during the year.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group has established various retirement benefit schemes for the benefit
of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in both defined contribution schemes
which are registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
(the “ORSO Schemes”) and Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (the “MPF
Schemes”) established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance in December 2000. For members of the MPF Schemes, the Group
contributes 5% of the relevant payroll costs per employee per month to the
MPF Schemes. The ORSO Schemes are funded by monthly contributions
from both employees and the Group at rates ranging from 5% to 7.5% of the
employee’s basic salary, depending on the length of service with the Group.

The Group also participates in the employee pension schemes in countries or
location where the Group operates. The Group is required to make defined
contributions at rates calculated as a certain percentage or sum of the monthly
payroll.

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to the consolidated
income statement during the year amounted to HK$5,792,000.

Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

EHGRESE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN

SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2011, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executives of the Company, the interests and short positions of the persons

or corporations in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which

have been disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FTERRZEZED

RIE——F=ZA=+—H RERAEFKEE
TTRABMA - THALTIOEERAR BB XA
IR TR ARIBE S R ERHIE XVEE 2
K30 M EXAARRRE  RARLENARR
RIEE S LI EEOIE 33616 E T 2 8 A 2 #
sNMERMT

Approximate
Number of percentage
Substantial shareholders Capacity shares held of interest
FERR 14 BROHBE BEEBQ
%
CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner 1,285,829,330 54.14
ERAY: BEamEAA (Note 1) (Fff5E1)
MIYAKAWA Michiko Beneficial owner 1,285,829,330 54.14
EIES BamER A (Note 2) (Fff5E2)
CIHL Beneficial owner 1,285,829,330 54.14
H B BEmEE A
CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar Beneficial owner 174,120,000 7.33
JE 4 IE BEmER A
CHAN Alanna Beneficial owner 174,120,000 7.33
k32 2= EaEAA (Note 3) (Fi5E3)
CHEN Wai Wai, Vivien Beneficial owner 161,305,000 6.79
REE EaEAA (Note 4) (P 5E4)
Crosby Investment Holdings Inc. Interest of controlled corporation 161,305,000 6.79
EEe NG g 3 (Note 4) (5 4)
Nan Fung Resources Limited Interest of controlled corporation 161,305,000 6.79
HEERBRAR RS AR RS (Note 4) (i3t 4)
Gentfull Investment Limited Beneficial owner 161,305,000 6.79
EZRERRAA EREAA (Note 4) (i3t 4)
Notes: B 5

1. Under the SFO, these shares were held by Dr Chow as corporate interests in which Dr Chow

was deemed to be interested.

2. Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms Miyakawa Michiko, the spouse of Dr Chow, was deemed to
be interested in the same parcel of those shares held by Dr Chow.

3. Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms Chan Alanna, the spouse of Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, was
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of those shares held by Mr Chow Vee Tsung,

Oscar.

4. Ms Chen Wai Wai, Vivien, Crosby Investment Holdings Inc., Nan Fung Resources Limited
are taken to be interested in 161,305,000 shares which were held by Gentfull Investment
Limited. Gentfull Investment Limited is wholly owned by Nan Fung Resources Limited and
in turn wholly owned by Crosby Investment Holdings Inc. which is 100% owned by Ms Chen

Wai Wai, Vivien.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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Report of the Directors

EHGRESE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, so far as is known to the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company, no other person has
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations which were required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or, were directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the
Company.

ARRANGEMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF SHARES OR

DEBENTURES

Except for the share option schemes adopted by the Company and its
associated corporations, at no time during the year was the Company or its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2011, with deviations from code
provision A.4.1 which has already been stated in the Corporate Governance
Report of the Annual Report.

The Board of the Company is committed to maintain high standards of
corporate governance. The Company has complied throughout the year
ended 31 March 2011 with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules with exception of deviation. Detailed information on the
Company’s corporate governance practices is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report contained on pages 19 to 24 of the Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Board, the percentage of the Company’s share
which is in the hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total
number of issued shares as at 31 May 2011, the latest practicable date to
ascertain such information prior to the issue of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors
EFAREE

AUDITOR 23 4

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Messrs AIZE YRR AE T KESFTMEFMEZ -
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and being eligible, offer themselves BOFKESHAMEEMEEER UHEERE
for re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the ERERRAFAGEEERT-

Company.

On behalf of the Board AESS5H

CHOW Yei Ching =B

Chairman & 75 58

Hong Kong, 31 May 2011 BE ZE——FRA=1+—H
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Independent Auditor’s Report
5 3B 0

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

BORKBEE SR

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chevalier Pacific
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 36 to 108, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 March 2011,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

7 W MR R E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2011, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 May 2011
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Consolidated Income Statement

el GRS
N

For the year ended 31 March 2011 BiZ — T ——4F=A=+—HIEFE

2011 2010
—2——F —T-FTF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
B 5 BT T BT T
Continuing operations HREREXY
Revenue A 5 316,266 238,114
Cost of sales 55 PK AR (69,164) (37,457)
Gross profit ER 247,102 200,657
Other income, net EAA - FEE 6 6,069 5,826
Other losses, net HAEE - 58 7 (41,974) (28,734)
Selling and distribution costs $HE RIS SHA AR (249,742) (200,654)
Administrative expenses 1TE H (14,463) (3,227)
Operating loss KB EIE (53,008) (26,132)
Share of results of associates FribEf & N a4 18 2,000 221
(51,008) (25,911)
Finance income UL N 8 860 73
Finance costs W% E R 8 (16) (219)
Finance income/(costs), net BN (BR) @ F58 8 844 (146)
Loss before taxation bR R B 1R 9 (50,164) (26,057)
Income tax expenses s i i 10 (2,396) (364)
Loss for the year from continuing operations REFEEEXE 2 FEEIE (52,560) (26,421)
Discontinued operations FIFEREXR
Profit for the year from discontinued operations REFFEFBEREEB 2 FEmH 14 199,400 4,329
Profit/(loss) for the year EERN(FE) 146,840 (22,092)
Attributable to: BiEs
Equity holders of the Company RAFIBRHERE A 13 147,534 (22,092)
Non-controlling interests FEHE IR 2 (694) -
146,840 (22,092)
Dividends g 11 323,013 13,432
Earnings/(loss) per share BRERN(EHE)
From continuing operations KEFELEER
— Basic and diluted (HK cents per share) —EARRE#E (GBI 12 (2.21) (1.22)
From discontinued operations KB IFFELEET
— Basic and diluted (HK cents per share) —EARREE(FREWL) 12 8.50 0.20
6.29 (1.02)

The notes on pages 43 to 108 are integral parts of these consolidated financial

statements.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

A emW SR
(AN

For the year ended 31 March 2011 B Z-F——F=A=+—HILFE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETR BET
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEBRA(ER) 146,840 (22,092)
Other comprehensive (loss)/ RE#FEHLMEE(EE) WE
income for the year, net of tax
Exchange difference on translation BEEINHT B A R FE S PTE £
of operations of overseas subsidiaries ZONE R R =T ) 687 315
Exchange difference released upon disposal WEEEINKTB R R R ER
of operations of overseas subsidiaries ZHNE R IR EEE (3,722) =
Gain on the Share Exchange (note 30(a)) f& 17 R ¥ 2 W= (FT#E30(a)) 2,437 -
Change in fair value of AIHEEZREN AR EEZS
available-for-sale investment - (1,573)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale BREGEANGROAHERE
investment transferred to ZEREBERNREEE
consolidated income statement - 2,345
Other comprehensive (loss)/ BREEFEEEMmET(EE) W
income for the year, net of tax (598) 1,087
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year FEE2ENE (FHE) 45 146,242 (21,005)
Attributable to: EiER
Equity holders of the Company KRR ERFE A 146,734 (21,005)
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR AE o (492) -
146,242 (21,005)
Note: B &E -
Items shown within other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year have no tax effect. REFHMEE(EE), WEMBERZEETERBLE -

The notes on pages 43 to 108 are integral parts of these consolidated financial F3F108E M T FEE W Bk 2 AKX ED
statements. 5 e
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
SO MBIk &

N

Asat 31 March 2011 R=Z——F=HA=+—H”

As at
31 March
2011

As at
31 March
2010

As at
1 April
2009

R=B——RXR T ZTFER_ZTNF

=A=+t—-HB =ZA=+—H MmA—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T BT
(restated) (restated)
(&Z3)) (E51)
Note (note 2(a)(i)) (note 2(a)(i))
B 5 (fisE2(a)(i)) (P 7E2(a) (i)
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 15 85,275 87,979 90,176
Intangible assets B EE 17 95,622 222,583 255,190
Interests in associates PTG 2 N Al 2 iR 18 57,056 932 1,079
Available-for-sale investment AHEEZRE 19 5,405 5,405 7,193
Non-current deposits ERBIF LIRS 22 15,821 23,457 24,461
Deferred tax assets FRIEFRIBE E 29 4,150 1,476 =
263,329 341,832 378,099
Current assets mEEE
Inventories FE 21 7,738 13,635 11,733
Debtors, deposits and prepayments IR - FHiRS RTENRE 22 26,301 35,162 39,404
Amounts due from associates JrE LU Bt 25 8 R IR 53X 18 556 142 311
Investments at fair value through RERRR QA ERE
profit or loss ZIRE 20 26,482 327 22,824
Current income tax recoverable & HA AT Y = P 1S B - 372 =
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHER 23 85,473 111,636 173,600
146,550 161,274 247,872
Current liabilities REBAE
Creditors, deposits and accruals BRIRR FARERTERER 24 61,162 52,451 162,398
Amount due to JE S S AR IR A 7
ultimate holding company R K 25 351 595 230
Amounts due to e IEVE R i
non-controlling interests R X 4,699 = -
Deferred income FEFEWA 341 9,129 5,796
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHAE 5,857 1,527 2,661
Bank borrowings SRITER 26 - 16,500 28,323
72,410 80,202 199,408
Net current assets REBEETE 74,140 81,072 48,464
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 337,469 422,904 426,563

The notes on pages 43 to 108 are integral parts of these consolidated financial

statements.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
AWMk #

Asat31 March 2011 R=—ZE——F=A=+—H

As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009

R-B-——FN_F-FTFER_FTLF
=A=+t—-R=A=+—H mA—A

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BEET T BT
(restated) (restated)
(&%) (E31)
Note (note 2(a)(i)) (note 2(a)(i))
P 52 (ffE2(a)(i)) (MHEE2(2)())
Capital and reserves MR AR 1%
Share capital A& A 27 118,755 112,770 107,770
Reserves E 28 164,092 290,577 297,692
Shareholders’ funds ek 282,847 403,347 405,462
Non-controlling interests JEPE AR HE e 28 39,821 = -
Total equity oS 322,668 403,347 405,462
Non-current liabilities FnRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIIE B & 29 5,876 19,557 21,101
Dividend payable to JE A< FE 2 iR i 2 PR B
non-controlling interests 8,925 - -
14,801 19,557 21,101
Total equity and non-current liabilities ZAREZE K FEREBAE 337,469 422,904 426,563
Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 May 2011 and signed on KEEEX _T——FAA=F+A#HtE YA
its behalf by: THEERRESE -
CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar KUOK Hoi Sang
JA#E =123
Director Director
EE EFE

The notes on pages 43 to 108 are integral parts of these consolidated financial F43F108E 2 M T FLERE W Bk 2 A ED
statements. ()

Annual Report 2011 39 —Z——FFH



Company Statement of Financial Position

GRS

N

Asat 31 March 2011 R=Z——F=HA=+—H”

2011 2010
—2——F —T-FTF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
B 5 BT T BT T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries FrihB B A Rl 2 16 189,954 414,995
Current assets REBEE
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments H fth fE YR FX
FitiEe RIEF A 22 312 531
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE UGB B A B bR 7K 16 3 37,125
Cash and bank balances R & RIRTT &% 23 23,326 44,102
23,641 81,758
Current liabilities REBAE
Other creditors, deposits and accruals H fth fE TR K
FARE RIERE R 24 582 1,329
Amount due to ultimate holding company FE A S A AR 2 B IR K 25 351 583
Amount due to a subsidiary JE 1< — R Bf /88 & ] IR K 16 80 =
1,013 1,912
Net current assets RBEEFE 22,628 79,846
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBAER 212,582 494,841
Capital and reserves IR A R 1k 48
Share capital [N 27 118,755 112,770
Reserves &% 28 93,827 382,071
Total equity BER 212,582 494,841

Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 May 2011 and signed on

its behalf by:

CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar
JE #1E

Director

EF

The notes on pages 43 to 108 are integral parts of these consolidated financial

statements.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Galn R

(NG
For the year ended 31 March 2011 HEZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE
Shareholders’ funds
BRRESE
Non-
Share controlling Total
capital Reserves Total interests equity
FEIER
@S R wE Em  AER
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BT B¥TrT AT BB T A¥TR

At 1 April 2009 R-ZETHAFEA—A 107,770 297,692 405,462 — 405,462
Total comprehensive loss FEXHEBRER

for the year - (21,005)  (21,005) - (21,005)
Dividends paid BERARE = (4,311) (4,311) = (4,311)
Issue of shares HITD 5,000 18,000 23,000 - 23,000
Share issuance costs ETRNEA - (661) (661) = (661)
Share option — consultancy RE R HE — S RE AR TS

services received - 862 862 - 862
At 31 March 2010 RZZE—TFE=H=+—H 112,770 290,577 403,347 - 403,347
Non-controlling interests TR 7 SR IR ZR Y

recognised on the Share Exchange JEIE P an

(note 30(a)) (B £ 30(a)) - - - 31,830 31,830
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BE B 8 & &)

(note 30(a)) (K 30(a)) - - - 17,408 17,408
Total comprehensive income FEXHEHK=ERE

for the year - 146,734 146,734 (492) 146,242
Dividends paid BERRE - (334,888) (334,888) - (334,888)
Issue of shares (note 27) BITIR ) (MY 5E27) 5,985 57,454 63,439 - 63,439
Share issuance costs BTN ER - (2,205) (2,205) - (2,205)
Dividend payable to FEST IR AR R 2l 2 PR B

non-controlling interests - - - (8,925) (8,925)
Share option — consultancy g I — S RE T R TS

services received - 6,420 6,420 - 6,420
At 31 March 2011 R=F——F=A=+—8H 118,755 164,092 282,847 39,821 322,668

The notes on pages 43 to 108 are integral parts of these consolidated financial F3F108E M T FEE W Bk 2 AKX ED
statements. 5 e
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GellenER

For the year ended 31 March 2011 B Z - ——F=A=+—HILFE

2011 2010
=E——F —TFF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
P 5 BETT BET T
Operating activities ReEEK
Cash (used in)/generated from operations EE(MA),/ EEzEe 40 (56,199) 83,049
Profits tax paid B FSH (3,469) (4,629)
Profits tax refunded MISBR K - 27
Net cash (used in)/ (AR),/RE&E
from operating activities ERCHSFE (59,668) 78,447
Investing activities REXE
Interest received =R RSN 862 300
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE  WENRRKE (10,842) (30,505)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  KEREHEZ
plant and equipment PR 5A 189 623
Proceeds from disposal of HERHHE ZRER
available-for-sale investment P sIE - 215
Adjustment arising from finalisation of b el N o
purchase consideration for step-up EROREWEREZ
acquisition of interest in an associate B - 661
Settlement of consideration payable for step-up SITIEE-EEE R R Z
acquisition of interest in an associate R BN R(E - (95,047)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from WEEHT B A A 2
acquisition of subsidiaries WEARACRE)FE 30(a) 35,643 (5,111)
Net cash inflow from disposal of HEPTH M E R AR
interests in subsidiaries BEeRAFEE 31(a) 296,966 =
Net cash outflow from disposal of HE—MRBARZ
a subsidiary e ML FaE 31(b) (3) =
Dividend received from an associate B — S R F 2R E 141 368
(Advance to)/repayment from —HBEREZ
an associate (B3),/BR (414) 169
Net cash from/(used in) RE (AR REEHR
investing activities ZHREFE 322,542 (128,327)
Financing activities eSS
Issue of shares BT 27 63,439 23,000
Share issuance costs BTRNEA 28 (2,205) (661)
Interest paid B F8 (16) (219)
Dividends paid BERRE (334,888) (4,311)
Dividend paid to ex-shareholder of B — A& R F 2 Al
an associate A% 3R B A% S - (18,199)
Repayments of bank borrowings BERITERX (16,500) (11,823)
Net cash used in financing activities ARmEXK 2 EEFHE (290,170) (12,213)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents HeRESEEBYRD (27,296) (62,093)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of theyear REHNZ2HERRELEEY 23 111,636 173,600
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates EXeg e 298 129
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year RERZHERBESEEY 23 84,638 111,636

The notes on pages 43 to 108 are integral parts of these consolidated financial

statements.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited

42 HEZEHEBRERAT

SF43E108 B Z RETI ML FAR & TSR Z MR ERED -



(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
45 A MR ok I R

GENERAL INFORMATION 1 —REH

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public listed HtZz R ZERERAR(TARAD R —HAAH

company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability. The addresses FmwEBREFMK L2 AREERA -

of the registered office and principal place of business of the Company RRB 2T MPEREREELEMI D FIAH
are Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda and Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM
22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon 12, Bermuda X BB N EEEZRE/\FE LR

Bay, Hong Kong respectively. The Company’s ultimate holding ERL T RABZHRKERAR BE

company is Chevalier International Holdings Limited (“CIHL”), a TEEESEERAR(HLEE])  &—M%E

limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. Both CIHL’s and BREAMRZZBREELRT - ELBIRK

the Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong RARZBBERBBHAERZETER AR (5

Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). XA £ e

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while RABIZEEXBRIFEER MEEZENE

the activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to the NAZ HEBE 2R ANGE B wER 541 -

consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong I ERE M BmMRABERS - BARARE 2

dollar, which is the same as the functional currency of the Company. BEEHER - WEREMBRMEIKLETERN

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by —E——FRA=+—B#EFE-

the Board of Directors on 31 May 2011.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF 2 MREEREAGTIHEMR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basis of preparation and principal accounting policies applied in the B SR A IR ATER < R B

preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. ZEFHRENTIX - REBEMEN - E

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, BEREERERRNBRZIZEFE -

unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation (a) MBEE

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its ARRRENBAR(ABIAEE]) ZHRAE

subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) have been prepared in accordance M mEDREEB SRS ([FEZM

with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by Ny l) Tz BB KRS ER([EEP R

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). HEA D RE o I EEE VB EmR THIRE LK

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the KEFHFE  WHARTHELE ZKERRER

historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available- RIBRAAEREZIRENEMMIEER

for-sale investment and investments at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS IRARE B W 75 i o5 S B R B o B 75 ok SR

requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires AREE@Egest it CTERKEREEERITA

the management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying SE e BERNBRERE G - B

the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree REBRAMSSEEMEZE  SEHR®R

of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates B HRNGEEMERREEATEZHE - )

are especially significant to the consolidated financial statements, are R4 B ER o

disclosed in note 4.

(i) Revised standards, and interpretation and amendments to existing (i) R=ZF—ZFFNH—-HHKEZFEREE
standards effective for the annual period beginning on 1 April MHIAENEATE R R BB EE R 2 R AEET
2010 x
The Group has adopted the following revised standards, and AEBEHEMNUATERAEBR _—_T—F
interpretation and amendments to existing standards which FPH— BBV IBFE E RS S RS
are mandatory for the first time for the Group’s financial year REBAAREEEBOLISET AR R A %
beginning on 1 April 2010 and are relevant to the Group’s Bl R REFT A - PR E ANEE 2 4R
operations. The impact on the Group’s consolidated financial BMBREZZEHIWAT
statements upon adoption is set out below:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&6 M B WOk I G

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
(1) Revised standards, and interpretation and amendments to existing

standards effective for the annual period beginning on 1 April 2010
(continued)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment), ‘Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions’. In addition to incorporating HK(IFRIC*)
— Interpretation 8, ‘Scope of HKFRS 2’, and HK(IFRIC) —
Interpretation 11, ‘HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share
Transactions’, the amendment expands on the guidance in
HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 11 to address the classification of
group arrangements that were not covered by the interpretation.
The new guidance has no impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

#  IFRIC: International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee

HKEFRS 3 (Revised), ‘Business Combinations’, and consequential
amendments to HKAS 27, ‘Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements’ and HKAS 28, ‘Investments in Associates’. The
revised standard continues to apply the acquisition method to
business combinations, with some significant changes in relation
to contingent payments, measurement of non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and acquisition-related costs. HKAS 27 (Revised)
requires the effects of all transactions with non-controlling interests
to be recorded in equity if there is no change in control and these
transactions will no longer result in goodwill or gains and losses.
The standard also specifies the accounting when control is lost. Any
remaining interest in the entity is re-measured to fair value, and a
gain or loss is recognised in consolidated income statement. The
Group has applied these standards in the consolidated financial
statements.

HKEFRS 5 (Amendment), ‘Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations’. The amendment clarifies that HKFRS
5 specifies the disclosures required in respect of non-current assets
classified as held for sale or discontinued operations. It also clarifies
that the general requirement of HKAS 1 still apply, in particular
paragraph 15 (to achieve a fair presentation) and paragraph 125
(sources of estimation uncertainty) of HKAS 1. The amendment
has no impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HKAS 17 (Amendment), ‘Leases’, deletes specific guidance
regarding classification of leases of land, so as to eliminate
inconsistency with the general guidance on lease classification.
As a result, leases of land should be classified as either finance
or operating leases using the general principles of HKAS 17, i.e.
whether the lease transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset to the lessee. Prior to the
amendment, any land interest where title was not expected to
pass to the Group by the end of the lease term was classified as an
operating lease accounted for within “Prepaid lease payments”,
and amortised over the lease term. The Group has reassessed the
classification of unexpired leasehold land interests as at 1 April
2010 on the basis of information existing at the inception of those
leases, and has recognised its leasehold land interests in Hong Kong
as finance leases retrospectively. As a result of the reassessment, the
Group has reclassified those leasehold land interests from operating
leases to finance leases. These property interests are held for own
use and are accounted for as property, plant and equipment and
depreciated from the land interest available for its intended use
over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA B AR I A

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF 2 RBHEENEASHTHEBE @)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued) (a) WBEE(E)

(i) R=ZF—ZFMH— AR FERABEN

(1) Revised standards, and interpretation and amendments to existing

standards effective for the annual period beginning on 1 April 2010
(continued)
The effect of changes in accounting polices following the adoption

HIRENEET BRI R BB ER R iz B R 15T A
(#)
RMERGHENE 17 (BRI ARG

of HKAS 17 (Amendment) on the consolidated statement of BRREBEHEETBRRARZZENT ¢

financial position is as follows:

As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009

RZB——FR_ZT—ZTF R _ZTTLF
=A=+t—H=Z=A=1+—H mA—H

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BT T
Decrease in prepaid lease payments T8 {< 8 & 5% I8 ik 2> (1,592) (6,632) (6,790)
Increase in property, plant ME - BE K
and equipment FAHIE N 1,592 6,632 6,790
There is no impact on the consolidated income statement and the EHRARERMGEEGEDRTER
consolidated statement of changes in equity. =
HKAS 36 (Amendment), ‘Impairment of Assets’. The amendment BEBSFERE3 K (EFTAR) [BER
clarifies that the largest cash-generating unit (or group of units) to B b ERT A< B BA Bt > Be 7 B 1T RUE
which goodwill should be allocated for the purposes of impairment BAAI BT EARGEE B (B

HE)R—R27RM(ERRBBUBRE
FERIE BT [RLE DR E5E) —BIEH

testing is an operating segment, as defined by paragraph 5 of
HKERS 8, ‘Operating Segments’ (that is, before the aggregation of

segments with similar economic characteristics). The amendment RESEEU 2 S EETE MR 2D A E
has no impact on the consolidated financial statements. BS o WLIEFT AN E 4R & B 7S Mk W B K 2
28 o

BERESSH  [WHHRRZ2H AKX
A8 A 1R 2 SRKAN IR R RR 2 TE B E R
Z 0B IR ERABAREF BN K

HK Interpretation 5, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause’, specifies that amounts repayable
under a loan agreement which includes a clause that gives the AR IR BRI 3 15 54 T B A BT
lender the unconditional right to call the loan at any time shall be G RERIBE B (2 B B R 2 A R @ FR S B
classified by the borrower as current liabilities in its statement of HEE-

financial position.

RMELREFSRREFTBRES LR
BMBIRARZEEWLT

The effect of changes in accounting polices following the adoption
of HK Interpretation 5 on the consolidated statement of financial
position is as follows:

As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009

R-ZB——F RN _ZT—ZFTFR_ZTZNF
=A=+t—H =A=1+—8H WmA—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T & #EF T BT

Increase in bank borrowings JmmBaEs
included under current liabilities SR AT 8 ZR 12 N - - 22,116

SIRERBAFGZ
RIT B R D

Decrease in bank borrowings
included under non-current

liabilities - - (22,116)
There is no impact on the consolidated income statement and the EHRE N R R REEEREDRMES
consolidated statement of changes in equity. & o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&6 M B WOk I G

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
(ii) Amendment to existing standard that is not effective but has been
early adopted by the Group
HKAS 12 (Amendment), ‘Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets’ introduces a presumption that an investment property
measured at fair value is recovered entirely through sale. This
presumption is rebutted if the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale. Prior to
the amendment, deferred taxation on investment properties at fair
value is measured to reflect the tax consequences of recovering
the carrying amounts of investment properties through use.
The amendment has no impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

(iii) New and revised standards that are not effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group
The following new and revised standards relevant to the Group have
been issued, but are not effective for the financial year beginning on
1 April 2010 and the Group has not early adopted them:

HKEFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’ (effective for annual period
starting from 1 April 2013). HKFRS 9 improves the classification
and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
compared with the requirements of HKAS 39. Under HKERS 9, all
financial assets are to be classified on the basis of the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial asset. Most of the requirements
in HKAS 39 for classification and measurement of financial
liabilities were carried forward unchanged to HKFRS 9. The Group
will apply HKERS 9 from 1 April 2013.

HKAS 24 (Revised), ‘Related Party Disclosures’ (effective for annual
period starting from 1 April 2011). HKAS 24 (Revised) simplifies
the disclosure requirements for government-related entities and
clarifies the definition of a related party. The Group will apply HKAS
24 (Revised) from 1 April 2011.

In addition, HKICPA has published a number of amendments for
the existing standards under its annual improvements project.

These amendments are expected to have no material impact to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

(b) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 March.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over
which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

2 EREERBEASHHREBE®

(a) WBEEE)
(i) [FREXTFEEEEE RN BB ER
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WEEMEE] REARABEHEZR
EMERSEBHET A ZBKEINHETE -
EEBREMEXBAITE RARZE AR
DESEREMEANKLENZ RSB
MAEALETANEERAKE 54
HETE R AT AR MR - FEULIERT AN 2R A
BARAREFEZREYERNELEN A
SEBRERURRKENREIREE R
BRMIELEE - BT AYERE MR

(iii) [ 7k £ 3% B 75 5 B 35 5 18 2 R A 89 3 5T K
ASI5ET 2R
Ty EANE E A BRI TR R A E R B
DEMbG - ERA T —ZEM A — A%
CHBEBEHALEN  MAEEKRRERET
LABR 43

BEMBHMEENER  [MEITA] (8
—E--FMA-BRBRZEFEHARL
B) BEMBRELANFORMERTES
FTERERAREL N BEERMBE
EDBERFENE REFEVBREE
RIS MMAMBEEZ D BENER
ERUBEECEBRARZUBEEL
SRR RERTE - BB S ERIFE 395
BBABELIBEAEZRBORENEE
MBMELEOFRIFTIE - REEF K
B-ZE—=FNA - HERAEEHBR
EEANE I o

BB EAF 245 (KERT)  [BEA
ITREI(R_F——FOA-BRKBZF
EHIRAER) - BB ST EAF 245 (2
FDEEBRNREER 2 WERT  UWE
BHEALZER - AKEHE-F——
i@?—Eﬂﬂéﬁﬁéﬁ%@ﬁi’%ﬁﬂﬁzﬁ)ﬁ(@
EET) °

SO BEEHM AR IREFREIRE
SR ZIEHRB R ZBFTA

HHFERTABRHANEE 2R A M BHRE
WEEBRTZE -

(b) ZEREEE
GAPBRREBEARARENBARNEE=
B=+—HB2Z20BEH=K -

B I8 2 A T A 5 [ A 4 6 S R I B R OR 2
ELCEX(BREENENDEE)  —RITFEREB
—YEREREIRE BUEAEERTESNS
—hXRF @ZTERKATENANERZELE
BREREEGFERERZE -

MEARREEHEEEEAEEERER
FEAR  WREHIERIEEREELEAA

g o

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited 46 HEtZHERERAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&6 M B WOk I G

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

For acquisitions prior to 1 July 2009, the cost of an acquisition is
measured at the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date, irrespective of the extent of any non-controlling interest. Non-
controlling interest is initially measured at its share of fair value of the
subsidiaries’ identifiable assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition
by the Group. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in
the consolidated income statement.

For acquisition on or after 1 July 2009, as a result of the adoption
of HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business Combinations”, accounting for
acquisition of subsidiaries is as follows:

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from
contingent consideration amendments. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchases, the difference is recognised directly in the statement
of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated. The financial information of subsidiaries has been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases from non-
controlling interests, the difference between any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&6 M B WOk I G

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset,
as appropriate. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.

Goodwill/discount on acquisitions

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary or an associate,
representing the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the Group’s
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the relevant subsidiary or associate at the date of
acquisition, is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is presented separately
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Goodwill arising on
an acquisition of an associate is included in the cost of the investment of
the relevant associate.

Separately recognised goodwill is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently if there is indication that goodwill might be impaired.
Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is included in investments in
respective associates and is tested for impairment as part of the overall
balance. For the purposes of impairment testing, separately recognised
goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units (“CGUSs”), or groups of CGUs, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A CGU to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the CGU to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less
than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in the income statement. An impairment
loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary or an associate, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary or
an associate represents the excess of the net fair value of an acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost
of the business combination and is recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&6 M B WOk I G

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF 2 WEEERERSTHREHREZ@®
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill/discount on acquisitions (continued) (0 WIBEE EE
Contingent liabilities of an acquiree are recognised at the date of the K HE S AB B2 A ERE Al SEHhEt &
acquisition if the fair value of the contingent liabilities can be measured AZEd A B ENIES AR - NIEEE A -
reliably. Contingent liabilities are initially measured at fair value at the ZERRBBERAABEERAE -
date of acquisition.
Interests in associates (d) FriEBE AT 2R
The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in BERNRZEE BERBBENRESEA
these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of FFABREMBHERN - BREBEERE  RiEa M
accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are AR R A AR & R 8] 2 18 & THHZRANME
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost as 128 A | D A == B 1< NS £ g
adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the profit BB E R T Ea REREHMER &
or loss and of changes in equity of the associates, less any identified EAEL AR - EAREE G SRR ZEIEE
impairment losses. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate ENRFEEBHENZBERR 2 ER(BEEE
equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any EERAEEERE QAR REFEEMR
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net Hitee)  NEBETBRERMAh2E—FEIE -
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its FINTIEEIE B TR BB REREE  HERR
share of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and RAEEE EEZEERARIET ESRZH
a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred ERAIXT 2RI e
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net W Fis B AN 7 T A SR B o (B B R Rl RS g B R
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities BRZAFANEE  BERIABEZARE
of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as PP h R EAERE DEAREE -
goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the BB ARE ZIREE - AERIBNHRE
investment and is assessed for impairment as part of the investment. ZREETME  c ARES B2 A #AIEE
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable BERKAREBBARBEFEZESEBWIBR R
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, ZHZEMNZEZE  @eREHTERESLES W
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in the consolidated RATER °
income statement.
Where a Group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, EEECEREREE  BMENTETRS - 8
unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s KRB GF REEGARNEENE B E QA
interest in the relevant associate, except to the extent that unrealised ZHEEBREITHE  HEZAZRBEREM
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in EEEEERERZEE  FURHIBERLT @ BIFER
which case, the full amount of losses is recognised. 2 EEE -
In the Company’s statement of financial position, investment in an RARBZHERRR - REEE QR ZIRE TS
associate is stated at cost less provision for impairment loss. The result RN R BB R ESIR - B N E 2%
of associate is accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends BITBARD FHRE W R ERAR B 2 B AR -
received and receivable.
Financial instruments (e) MHFEITH
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statements EEECEXNAMETAS MG Z TR
of financial position when a Group entity becomes a party to the I EERMB A BRI BARR KRR B
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial BEERVBABRUEARBENE - BHEE
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are RARBHETHBEERVBAR(RIER
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and IRE A R EFIR 2 B 758 E R B 75 & B4 )
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities ZRBEA  RBRERBFRT G EEST
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the BEZARBEMASER(WER) - EEEN
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, WENESIREAAERE 2 MEEESTE
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the BEZRGEA - IR R AR
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in the income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&6 M B WOk I G

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and/or receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in the income
statement.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and/or payable is recognised in the income
statement.

(i) Financial assets
The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale investment. The accounting policies adopted in respect of
each category of financial assets are set out below:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are those
financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss on
initial recognition. At the end of each reporting period subsequent
to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are re-measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in the income statement in the period in which
they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including debtors, amounts
due from associates and cash and cash equivalents) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses. An impairment loss is recognised
in the income statement when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an
increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject
to a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(i1)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale investments or not classified within
either of the other categories set out above. At the end of each
reporting period subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-
sale investments are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value
are recognised in equity, until the financial asset is disposed of
or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in equity is removed from
equity and recognised in the income statement. Any impairment
losses on available-for-sale investments are recognised in the
income statement. Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed through the income statement
in subsequent periods. For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an increase in the
fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment losses.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are stated at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition. An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
losses will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a Group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The Group’s financial liabilities are classified into financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are financial
liabilities held for trading on initial recognition. At the end of
each reporting period subsequent to initial recognition, financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are remeasured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in the income
statement in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(ii) Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities including bank borrowings, creditors,
amount due to ultimate holding company are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Property, plant and equipment

Land held under finance leases and all other property, plant and
equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on
qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property,
plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Land held under a finance lease commences amortisation from
the time when the land interest becomes available for its intended
use. Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance lease and
depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Over the lease term

20-50 years or remaining terms of the
respective leases, whichever is the shorter
after considering the residual value

Over the lease term

10%-331/,%

Prepaid lease payments
Buildings

Leasehold improvements

Store machine and
equipment

Furniture, fixtures,
office equipment and
motor vehicles

10%-30%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset is

determined as the difference between the net sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF 2 WEEERERSTHREHREZ@®
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Trademarks and favourable leases (g BERBFHEE
On initial recognition, trademarks and favourable leases acquired RERFERE - B 5 KB R EBRS G
separately and during business combinations are recognised at cost Z R RBREE D FIRKANE R A ERER
and at fair value respectively. After initial recognition, trademarks B AERE  BREAFHZEERE A
and favourable leases with finite useful lives are carried at cost less SRRECAER R X REHREB R o
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation for BRERAFHHR S - DIAE R
trademarks with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis REMARIFZEAFHIR - AREAF
over their estimated useful lives of 15 years. Amortisation of favourable Mz EFHEEREAFRBERFHUERE
leases with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over FTIRTIMR o
their remaining useful lives of 4 years.
The gain or loss arising from derecognition of a trademark and a BEEEREIE B B ERE L 2 W sk EE
favourable lease is measured as the difference between the net disposal BRZEEAEZEEMEHRIEFHEEEREE S
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the ZHEHE  WARRERERZBEER N KRR
income statement when the asset is derecognised. ANHER
Trademarks and favourable leases are tested for impairment annually or FEREFNEEFFETRENR - HMETR
more frequently if there is indication that the assets might be impaired. BT EERRRE - RIEERMETRIE o
Inventories h) #&
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost GFETDRKARAZHRFE_E 2 RIEBAK -
is determined using the first-in-first-out method. Net realisable value is BN LA e e MR TE - I # R EIRA T
estimated selling price on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds in the KREZBAREMESRERTZEERY 2
ordinary course of business less applicable variable selling expenses. BEREETE °
Cash and cash equivalents () BE2RELZEEYD
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call BekReEENEEFRE S RITBAF
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original ;o REEE TN RB=EA 2 B R ER
maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts PUREUARRITES - RITBARDAEE
are shown as a separate current liability in the statement of financial I8 S BN E TSR ©
position.
Revenue recognition G) WAZ®ER
Income from the sale of goods is recognised when goods are delivered HESmAEEZWATINE X RE M
and title to the goods has passed to the customers. Revenue is arrived at BEEERTRPEER - WAERKRA H
after deduction of any sales returns, discount and value-added tax. EIRE - HrHN RIBET °
Income from rendering of services is recognised at the time when RRERIEFTE 2 WA TR IR RSB FERR o T2
services are rendered. Receipts in advance of provision of services are AR 7% Al 2 AWK IB T BB RLER AR °
accounted for as deferred income.
Franchise income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the contract BERBADRERERGHNBAAER - &
period. Receipts in advance of franchise income is accounted for as WA 2 FBEWRIBBEERERARA -
deferred income.
Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, with WA E 2 M B WA TR L O AR - AR
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate BARWEIAS RGHERFNEAE - BRF
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future ERBEBAMBEEARERER KR
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to its net RESWATREEE ZIREFEZLE -
carrying amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&6 M B WOk I G

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. All other borrowings costs
are charged to the income statement in the period in which they are
incurred.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rental payables under operating leases are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivables as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

(m) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an

unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF 2 WEEERERSTHREHREZ@®
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (n) ¥
In preparing the financial statements of each individual Group entity, PR S ERIEE D2 MERERE - D
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that ENREEEUIINZ E (INE)ET 2R S HE
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency RPAMZEREXRE S G (BZ b
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which the MU F BARERE Y S ) AR o RE
entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of ¥ 5 89K - AN DIE 2 B ¥ 118 B 912 3R
the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items EHR s BAEEXRRE - HARENUINETE
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing ZIIFEWIEBARBEAAES B ZEREX
at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair BE - RELKARAINESTE 2 IFEHIEEE
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the BARE -
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not translated.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and REERBE SRR RES 2B Z5Y
on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in the income REEHBERRKERFER @ HIHELEZ58
statement in the period in which they arise, except for exchange TRME B A EB R IBINERE 2 REFR—
differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s B E¥METHE MEERIRIN - ZEHERT -
net investment in a foreign operation, which are recognised in equity RIRE MR 2 ETAER - IBA R BETIK
in the consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences arising ZIEEEMTEELENREREL ZIER 25
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are RZPRER KRR - EEFRE EERE
included in the income statement for the period except for differences mANERR S NEECEEEHEMEE 2 E
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which HERON - EULIERT - Wam sk BB 2 & 5 55
gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the MEERERNER -
exchange components of that gain or loss are also recognised directly in
equity.
For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, MEINGREMBRERME * NEEEFIEF 2
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated BERBEDNRBRENREARFZINREE 2
into the presentation currency of the Company at the rate of exchange EREXRHE mMERARBSAEZEEZ
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income and SEHNE R - IR IEIE R A 5% HA R A R K R
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, RENRIVERIR - EUILIERT  BIERAR S E B
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which ZIiARMER - FREL ZIE R EZZE(W0E) HER
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are TER AR e 25 2 8 57 B 19 (HME K H0% B 1) o
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised as a separate ZEEHZRIIN BN EB L E RN MR
component of equity, the exchange fluctuation reserve. Such exchange AR o
differences are recognised in the income statement in the period in
which the foreign operation is disposed of.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on an acquisition of a WHEBINESEENEER AR ERAE
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign TBEZ BN EB 2 EEKRBRE » WRMRED
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of RZBEFE R o FTEE 2 &5 ZENIMNE
the reporting period. Exchange differences so arising are recognised in HIZ B REENER -
the exchange fluctuation reserve.
Retirement benefits costs (o) ENRBAEHR
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans including HEMTERARBIEZ (BIEE SRS AR
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme in Hong Kong are charged as an S E) 2 HEARBBEMNEHNRE B K Z &
expense as they fall due, net of contributions forfeited by employees. EMZIIEAER -
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation

Income tax expenses represent the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes income statement items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted
for using the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and interests in associates except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient future taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax
is charged or credited to the income statement, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also dealt with in equity.

Impairment

Assets that have indefinite useful lives or have not yet been available
for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units
“CGU”). Assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited

(P)

(@

RAUBEERBEASTHEBE @)

BE
PS50 32 H $E 38 B B AN A5 T8 S R AE A T8 2 42 A o

FW@%WE%ZE%mmﬂAmﬂﬁ%WH
RAERERBGEN T B FEERY K
AR Z MA X LIRE - T IR R R
FMH 2 WERIAR - AEB 2 EHHRIBAE
TR R E AR ATE R EE B 2 B R G

= o
=47

BEERBLREVBHEENEERABREE
Aﬁ = & SR A P IR R AR R AR 2 E R A
R UHRAMABEFA - BERAEE K3t
%ﬁ%%mgk%ﬁﬁ CEERBEENR
TWH§h§Eﬁﬂ%%Mﬁﬁ*%%ﬁﬁﬁ
METFUER HEREZEHEER(TE
EEBAH) —BIRERRDEMHEE
MeRH 2z HMEERBENVFEBMES -
BHEERBEBEDNTAER -

BELERBE BRI B AR ZRE KB E R
TZE\WFEE%mgkﬁiﬁﬁﬁw'%
FEZRER [ T P2 06 A 1 R I % R
EEABERZKRATEN S 0 -

BIENIAEEZ REESNEERS HARET
B2 WRIETHBEBRNZARKERTE
M DAY [0 2 B0 & E Sk EL AR AT BR 0 A Lk o

BELEHRAREERFNAESTFERRER
HERMEGFE - BB BT ARSEREIR
ERHR  ESRERFARREIRNE TR

Z A B RIBRSN - UL B TR E B IR A8 I M it
NEIE

B
Eﬁ@ﬂﬁi%ﬁﬁ%Tﬁ%Zﬁ?ﬁﬁ%%'

BRASFETRENR EEHEKNBENAE
%ﬁﬂ%$ﬂ%@EEEEH*M¢%%2§
ERRELETEN BEKREESDEA KD
EBEZEHERSRERSE - AIROEREEE
Zﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%?mZ%
- R RER  BERRNELDIBEUD
EﬁﬁTﬁiﬁﬂﬂ%é%Eﬁsa(Fi%é%fkét AL )ETTHA
BREEBUINERREEERSEZHA B
BEUREZ AT TR R

56 HIZEEBRERAT



(r)

(t)

(u)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&6 M B WOk I G

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF 2 WEEERERSTHREHREZ@®
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions (r) 1B
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or PN £R [ R 3B 1 = 1 ZB AR HE 3R I A TE S TE
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an £ mAEZEEAEADRERIZET Ffr
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the W E e EERL A S (h ATy 0 BIZERERBE o
amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise SRBHEOERILHEIRRESRHREME -
lease termination penalties and employee termination payments. I R R RS & R R R s o
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that MR LEBAUEE METZEEESEA
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering PABREZRZEEANEBEMNEERE
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the Bt B R Bl & £ (A — A Al BE 2R 2 A B IR &Y
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the HBERK - BINEREREE-
same class of obligations may be small.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures BENARRBETSTEESNRBEER
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that B ERE R R B O BR BRI A X - ATARH AR {E
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the BITEENRAXZAE ﬁfﬁ ERFE » AR HE
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to HESHHBEBHEN  SRBR/NEF -
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
Contingent liabilities (s) RAEME
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events SR BETIIEANAE 2 FIHEE 2 AR ETS -
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non- ﬁﬁ ZEHEZGFERER i@?@ B N EEE —THE
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within ZIE A AL E T2 Efl 2 M EEB&EIE
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from MR - SkABBEINAIIERB AL 2 = IE
past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow ﬁﬁ B 2ERER  HEHRNEBEERAEEA
of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation piigast 1&1;5‘%2 CRELAAIEGE W ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%}}iﬁ?ﬁ
cannot be measured reliably. e
A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the note to FABEHARRIMEANGES M BERKMEA
the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the probability W o W& RM 2 7] RE ?X EESBMERE
of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be RATRE M A BB SR ER SRR -
recognised as a provision.
Segment reporting ) DERSE
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the LENBcMENAAE L ELERFERLE
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The HORTHRE2 TR —B - T2EERKED
chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the executive WHR ABEEATES - NTESEEHIEE
directors collectively. The executive directors are responsible for BRI BFHEEED B ZRE -
allocating resources and assessing performance of operating segments.
Share-based compensation (v UBRGRER2FHHE
The Group operates an equity-settled share-based compensation RNEEZA —BEUARBEERD RBER 2 #E
plan, under which the Group receives services from consultants in FrEl Bt AEEESEBRE RS AE
consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group. The TEERETA(BRE) ERNRE - REIEK
fair value of the services received in exchange for the grant of the TRREMRENRB AR EBERER S -
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed BTEAXE RSB N2ZEMBEEREZA
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted, REBEE - WA AEMIET SRS R AKER
excluding the impact of any non-market service and performance EREBGRG TR - FTEEBGEBER
vesting conditions. Non-market vesting conditions are included in ST ERE 2 BIRER A RAG AZRER o
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to vest. Hzaern G B R (BESSERBIREZ
The total amount expensed is recognised over the vesting period, that i) ARER - RE[EHmEHREEETEY
is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to TRERIBIET ISR B IG5 B < BIREEA T
be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period, the entity revises its EZ 5T DEELHZEWE R P E WL 7] R
estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the Btz 2Z2(nE)  WHAEAZER -
non-market vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision
of original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income statement with
a corresponding adjustment to equity.
The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs ERRERITER - T RIBEENRE T—JE
are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium when ?x FEIE R SR A AR (HE) &R G5 &
the options are exercised. B o
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3.1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&6 M B WOk I G

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-sale
investment, investments at fair value through profit or loss, debtors,
amounts due from/to subsidiaries, amounts due from associates,
creditors, amount due to ultimate holding company, amounts due
to and dividend payable to non-controlling interests, cash and bank
balances and bank borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes to the consolidated financial statements.
The risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies
adopted to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Financial risk factors
(a) Market risk

(i)

(i1)

Interest rate risk

The bank deposits and bank borrowings are exposed to fair
value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. The
floating-rate bank borrowings and short-term bank deposits
are exposed to cash flow interest rate risk. The management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

If interest rates had been increased/decreased by one
percentage point and all other variables were held constant, the
post-tax profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2011
would increased/decreased by approximately HK$517,000
(2010: decreased/increased post-tax loss of HK$325,000)
resulting here from the changes in the interest income from
bank deposits and borrowing costs of bank borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial
transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are denominated
in a currency that is not the Group entity’s functional
currency. The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, of which net assets/liabilities are exposed to foreign
currency translation risk. Currency exposure arising from
the net assets/liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations is
managed primarily through borrowings denominated in the
relevant foreign currencies.

Major financial instruments under foreign currencies (other
than the functional currencies of the Group entities) that
are exposed to foreign exchange risk are denominated in the
United States dollar (“US dollar”), to which Hong Kong dollar
is pegged.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&6 M B WOk I G

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(iii) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investment in equity securities classified as available-for-
sale investment. The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks.
In addition, the management has appointed a special team
to monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

(b) Credit risk

Principal financial assets consist of available-for-sale investment,
investments at fair value through profit or loss, debtors, amounts
due from subsidiaries, amounts due from associates and bank
balances.

Debtors of the Group may be affected by the unfavourable
economic conditions and the lower liquidity situation which
could in turn impact their ability to repay the amounts owed.
Deteriorating operating conditions for debtors may also have an
impact on management’s cash flow forecasts and assessment of
the impairment of receivables. To the extent that information is
available, the management has properly reflected revised estimates
of expected future cash flows in their impairment assessments.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at the end
of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts.

Amounts due from subsidiaries and associates are continuously
monitored by assessing the credit quality of the counterparty,
taking into account its financial position, past experience and other
factors. Where necessary, impairment loss is made for estimated
irrecoverable amounts. As at 31 March 2011, the amounts due from
associates are fully performing.

Investments, interests receivable and cash transactions are limited
to financial institutions or investment counterparties with high
credit quality and the Group does not expect any significant
counterparty risk. Moreover, credit limits are set for individual
counterparties and periodic reviews are conducted to ensure that
the limits are strictly followed.

The Group does not have a significant exposure to any individual
debtor or counterparty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M HREM

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3
POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1
(c) Liquidity risk

BEEREEBZERBEE@

B 75 R B R & ()
(c) BEZREBERE

The Group aims to maintain prudent liquidity risk management
and flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient cash equivalents,
readily realisable marketable securities and to have committed
short term and medium term credit lines available.

The Directors of the Company believe that the Group has obtained
sufficient committed and uncommitted general credit facilities
from banks for working capital purposes.

The Group’s liquidity position and compliance with loan covenants
are monitored closely by the management of the Company.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
end of each reporting period to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

AEBBNEFRAZREZEY - Al &
M2 BBEFARAIHEAZ B k5
RHHEEE  WEREEZ ESRDEA
RERERERMHEEZEEIL -

ARAREERR AEEEESRREZD
AR ARAGE L —RERITEERE @ F
LEETRE -

ARBERERERAREZESR
B B8 ST BRI -

TRDATAEBEM BB ELRESER
SHREGNIMAHTHRREHIH
HETOE - TR HEBRBEELARN
REERE -ARFRIFELTEK
Q;DMMH NE R EHESFREIRE A

More Total
Less than 1-2 2-5 than undiscounted
1year years years 5 years cash flows
KBRS
DPR—F —EWF —EEF BBRE MERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BMTR  EmFr  BMTR  BETR  EMTx
The Group rEE
At 31 March 2011 RZZE——4
=B=+—H
Trade and other creditors B 5 I H b fE 1R 5K 16,128 - - - 16,128
Amount due to ultimate e R AR A B
holding company iR 351 - - - 351
Amounts due to &1 FE4E fR A 2
non-controlling interests R X 4,699 - - - 4,699
Dividend payable to JE T EHE R o
non-controlling interests fi% 2 - 9,600 - - 9,600
More Total
Less than 1-2 2-5 than  undiscounted
1 year years years 5 years cash flows
ABHEE
PR—E —EWF “ERF BRAF MERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T IT BT IT T T ST BT IT
The Group rE
At 31 March 2010 RZZT—TF
=Z=A=+—H
Trade and other creditors B 5 N E A FE AT 1R 3K 19,346 - - - 19,346
Amount due to ultimate S R ARIER A A
holding company 1R 3K 595 - - - 595
Bank borrowings and FITETK
interest payments FLS AR 16,517 = = = 16,517

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA B AR I A

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 FEEREREEBERBEK®
POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BBEKEEGE)
(¢) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) BELmEEE(E)
More Total
Less than 1-2 2-5 than undiscounted
1 year years years 5 years cash flows
RITBHRE
PR—F —EWME —ERE BBAF TRELE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
BET T BETT BETT BYET T BET T
The Company YNNG
At 31 March 2011 RZT——4
=Z=A=+—H
Other creditors H b 5 R FX 159 . _ _ 159
Amount due to ultimate S S ARIER A A
holding company b 351 - - - 351
Amount due to a subsidiary  FE{ —fE i /E 2 7
R 80 - - - 80
More Total
Less than 1-2 2-5 than  undiscounted
1 year years years 5 years cash flows
AITHRBE S
DR—F —EMF —ERE HBAAF MERTE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BET T BET T BET T BET T
The Company PN
At 31 March 2010 RZZE-Z2F
ZA=t+—H
Other creditors EH b IR K 346 - - - 346
Amount due to ultimate R SRR A )
holding company iR 3K 583 = = = 583

3.2 Capital risk management
The Group’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern while maximising the
returns for shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance.

The Group regularly and closely reviews and manages its capital
structure to provide cost efficient funding to the Group and its
companies and make adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes of economic conditions or corporate needs.

The capital structure of the Group is solely represented by total equity.

The Group was in net cash position as at 31 March 2011 and 2010 taking
into account bank borrowings and cash and bank balances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&6 M B WOk I G

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3

3.3

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value estimation

3.3

The Group uses the following hierarchies for determining and disclosing

the fair values of financial instruments:

Level 1:
in active markets for identical assets

Level 2:

fair values measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted)

fair values measured based on valuation techniques for

which all inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are observable, either directly or

indirectly

Level 3:

fair values measured based on valuation techniques for

which all inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are not based on observable market

date (unobservable inputs)

BEEREEBZERBEE@

DAREME
AEEERTIHRNEERBEEMHTAZA
A

ZH—: AR EDREBEEERMSFHERE
EZHRECREAR)FE

AREIREMEHCARAAR
BEAEEAXENHARENE
BERREBRE 2 EENDEGE

AR = :

BE=: R2AREDIREMEHCARAA
BEEEEAXENBHABEIL A
FERABRDHHIB(TAEE

KRB AHEB) ZEETERE

Assets measured at fair value as at 31 March 2011: R-E——F=A=1+—HERARBFEZEE:
The Group
KE
Level 2 Level 3
&Rl = FA=
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEET T BET T
Available-for-sale investment AEHE 2 RE
— Investment in a venture capital —REKRESZRE -
fund, at fair value BAREE - 5,405
Investments at fair value through RERIRER L ERR
profit or loss 2B 81 26,401
81 31,806

Assets measured at fair value as at 31 March 2010:

REB—FF=A=+—REBRAREFEZEE:

The Group
NEE
Level 2 Level 3
531 FR=
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT
Available-for-sale investment AHEE 2 RE
— Investment in a venture capital —REKREEZRE -
fund, at fair value BARBEAE - 5,405
Investments at fair value through RIERIRZE AR BERE
profit or loss ZIRE 327 -
327 5,405

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&6 M B WOk I G

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 BARERTAETRHE
JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on filr st R I B & R 8 3 R IR R A BR I B b
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future = ETFBEEREEBATHEAAGEMYE R
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. %$1¢Zi§ B - TR R A
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. RNEBERBARREL BT RRF  FTi5 2 F5HE
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal TREERIEEBCERERIER - A5 S
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a ANEBIWFEEERBBZIREMBER T — %
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts FERNREERAR A RBREEIOT
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below:
Estimated impairment of goodwill, trademarks and favourable leases () FHEEE BTEREREANEE
Impairment loss of HK$30,218,000 (2010: HK$29,174,000) in relation HE-_ZT——F-A=1+-—BULEE HE
to the goodwill allocated to Group’s restaurant and bar business and full EARAKECEBRBEER 2 ABELRE
impairment loss of HK$5,117,000 (2010: nil) in relation to the goodwill &5 18 A 7 I 30, 218 000C( =T —ZTF: FiK
allocated to Group’s natural resources business were recorded for the 29,174,0007C) ' MO EEEREE 2 RAERE
year ended 31 March 2011. No impairment losses were recorded in BeEEELSE 5 /@ZTEJE_? 18R % 5,117,000 7T
relation to trademarks and favourable leases. —E2FE R HERBINEELEES
B E1E o

If the gross margin assumed in the post-tax cash flow projections RZTE——F=A=1+—"H WAEEZEE
for the Group’s restaurant and bar business had been 1% lower than ROBNE 25 7 2 B 1% 3R € 7 2 T8 8 BT #E E E A
management’s estimates as at 31 March 2011, the Group would have EREERE AR 1% - N B — P
recognised a further impairment loss on goodwill allocated to those RAMTREXB L HBEZREERR/BE
businesses by HK$32,851,000. 32,851,000 7T °
If the post-tax discount rate applied to the discounted cash flow RZTE——F=A=1+—H " WEAEEEER
projections for the Group’s restaurant and bar business had been 1% BEBEBANRERXFEEHRAASRER
higher than management’s estimates as at 31 March 2011, the Group AREEEBAEET = 1% AEBEGE— PR
would have recognised a further impairment loss on goodwill allocated RAMTREXB L HEZREERR/BE
to those businesses by HK$11,220,000. 11,220,000 JT °
Estimated useful lives of intangible assets (other than goodwill) (b) HFIEFEE(BERMN 2AERER
The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and AEB s EREEEENEE(BERIN 2E
consequent related amortisation rates (if any) for its intangible assets SRl FE A F AR A AENE#EER(INE) -
(other than goodwill). These estimates are based on the historical ZEMFIRBEERTECIELRERLEE
experience of the actual useful lives of comparable intangible assets in ZERAERAFHZBELBRMIEL - BRL
related industries. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated EEET LB 2 A ERAF AR - EHE
useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change in amortisable BI PRI (R #E SHEF BR(E B B - ABUE MR R
lives and consequently increase or decrease in amortisation expenses in AR 2 # S Y o
future periods.
Estimated fair value of available-for-sale investment (c) HEFTHEEZRENAAE
In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar available- HRELUZ TEENREEERTS FRZI
for-sale investment, the Group determines the fair values by using TEBE  MAEEREZ ENRR TRER(E
valuation technique which is based on information from a variety of BRAREEZRENZTVBEER)  UHE
sources, including the latest financial information of the available-for- REEAHHE 2 RENAAE(HFEL9) -
sale investment (note 19).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA B AR I A

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 BARIIEETRAE @
]UDGEMENTS (continued)
Estimated fair value of investments at fair value through profit or (d REZBRRAABEEZRENGTAAE-
loss-put option b H R
The determination of the fair value of the put option (note 20) granted B R RO iR A o E (M & 20) A E R
requires estimates in determining the value of the equity interest at HERHZEEEE  TRE  HgEEHFES -
the valuation date, exercise price, expected life of the option, annual FEERRANERIAHKE - JDERGEB E
risk-free rate and expected volatility which was based on the statistical ATAE = F A& LR A A/ 5 B AR B K 18 89 21
analysis of volatility of weekly share prices of comparable companies BT
over the last three years before the valuation date.
Estimated fair values of Sinochina and Metro Point at date of the (e) Bf=E30 P & Sinochina & Metro Point JA iR 145
Share Exchange as disclosed under note 30 RB{ BBz AT ARE
The determination of the fair values of Sinochina and Metro Point at the /& 7€ Sinochina & Metro Point 73 f&% 17 323 A HA#Y
date of the Share Exchange (note 30) requires estimates in determining Het R A E (MsE30) Btz B L&A 7 R G
the market multiples of comparable companies at valuation date. BERBNTISEE -
Estimated fair value of share options H BREZGEHAAE
The determination of the fair value of the share options (note 37) EEEEBREND B (M FE37) BbarHE
granted requires estimates in determining the expected volatility of 37(a) R 37(b)FTEH 2 RETBH L HIRE - FHH
the share price, the expected dividend yield and the risk-free interest B 38 K% g PR A 17 150 B ) 48 [l B A6 3R o i BB
rate for the life of the option as stated in notes 37(a) and 37(b). Where A FITENBRESREEMREE  EEFERE
the outcome of the number of options that are exercisable is different, TEEFERELERREBHENGS RGEE -
such difference will impact the consolidated income statement in the
subsequent remaining vesting period of the relevant share options.
REVENUE 5 WA
Continuing operations ~ Discontinued operations Total
FELERYE FEEEEEY b
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
—B-—-% “2-%F _%F--§ “T-TF _F--% “T-Tf
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
B¥TR A¥Tr B¥Tx BETx  B¥Tn B%Tx
Revenue represents amounts received 15 £ 4 % & UK
and receivable from: ZWA
Sales of food and beverages ERHE 292,899 218,861 70,660 281,947 363,559 500,808
Sales of coffee machines 0N B i 5H - - 1,233 4,173 1,233 4,173
Service income RIS 22,985 19,136 3,103 10,709 26,088 29,845
Franchise income FERUA 377 18 789 2,251 1,166 2,269
Leasing of coffee machines M & - - 215 829 215 829
Interest income from investmentsat ~ RE=IRE R 7 ERE
fair value through profit or loss ZIREHMBUA 5 99 - - 5 99
316,266 238,114 76,000 299,909 392,266 538,023

An analysis of the Group’s revenue by segments is set out in note 32.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&6 BB R M aE
6 OTHER INCOME, NET 6 HAWA - FE
Continuing operations ~ Discontinued operations Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

—B--% —T-TF -%--% “T-TF "B--F —T-TF
HK$000 ~ HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
BETR ARTr AT BT  B¥Fr  AETET

Management fee income from RE—EEHEREZ
an associate EREBWA 808 710 - - 808 710
Sponsorship income from suppliers 28 B &7 2 EHnlloN 1,293 2,486 - - 1,293 2,486
Interest income from deposits FiHike RENFKEZ
and prepayments FEWA - 219 - - - 219
Others Hity 3,968 2411 38 319 4,006 2,730
6,069 5,826 38 319 6,107 6,145
7 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 7 Hit(BE) s FHE
Continuing operations  Discontinued operations Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
B —Z-TF Z%--§ —T-TF ZB--§ _T-FTF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000
BETRT WETr B¥%Tz AB¥Tr B%Tn BT
Gain/(loss) on investments REREERAL ERE
at fair value through profit ZREMW R,
or loss, net (EB1#8) - %
— Realised —2ER - 3,018 - - - 3,018
— Unrealised —REH (9,954) 26 - = (9,954) 26
Impairment loss on available-for-sale  AJ £ i & 2 1% & &)
investment HEEE - (2,345) - = - (2,345)
(Impairment loss)/reversal M BER&HEL
of impairment loss on CREEE),/
property, plant and equipment B {E B IR (1,960) (416) - 749 (1,960) 333
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 17) 72 2 Fi{E&E (MizF17) (30,218) (29,174) (5,117) = (35,335) (29,174)
Exchange gains, net BE K s o % 158 157 34 181 192 338
Gain on disposal of interests in HEMENER AR
subsidiaries (note 31(a)) U g (Fff 55 31(a)) - = 217,361 = 217,361 =
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHE AR W
(note 31(b)) (B 5E31(b)) - = 1,895 = 1,895 =
(41,974)  (28,734) 214,173 930 172,199 (27,804)
8 FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS), NET 8 HBWA(ER)  FH
Continuing operations ~ Discontinued operations Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
2% 2% ZE-—-% —T-%F ZB-——-§ —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000
B¥TRT A%t B¥Tx B%Tr  B¥Tn B%Tx
Interest income from bank deposits ~ #R4777 50 2 F| 8 A 860 73 2 8 862 81
Interest expenses on bank borrowings  #817 f& 7,2 7| 8 F & (16) (219) - - (16) (219)

844 (146) 2 8 846 (138)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&6 BB R M aE
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 9 KRBIATEIE
Continuing operations ~ Discontinued operations Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
ZB-—-f _Z-TF ZB-—- _T-TF ZB--F _ZT-FTF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT AETT B¥BTR BTt BETR  B%Tx
Loss before taxation has been arrived B F{AIES 1B E 1/
at after charging/(crediting) (FEA) TFIRIE -
the following:
Auditors’ remuneration REEIE & 1,661 803 391 409 2,052 1,212
Depreciation of property, plant VENTEL
and equipment i 17,884 16,756 3,686 15,520 21,570 32,276
Amortisation of trademarks Gl ya £ 1,207 689 1,800 7,200 3,007 7,889
Amortisation of favourable leases BRIHEE 2 &8 741 - - - 741 -
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of HEDE  BERERE
property, plant and equipment Z B8/ (k) 58 213 453 22 (131) 235 322
Operating lease payments in respect of #% & M 7HE
leasing of premises under BFHARAX
— minimum lease payments —RERERK 57,871 47,123 20,688 80,061 78,559 127,184
— contingent rent —HREE 3,066 2,820 1,316 6,617 4,382 9,437
Staff costs (note) 8 T (KEE) 118,608 96,108 18,879 65,919 137,487 162,027
Share option - consultancy BRE-ERHSA
services received AR 7 6,420 862 - - 6,420 862
Management fee EREBMA 800 800 - - 800 800
Provision for inventories to net FEEEBZE
realisable value A5 EE - - - 331 - 331
Note: BtaE -

Details of Directors’ emoluments included in staff costs are disclosed in note 33.

Included in staff costs is an amount of HK$5,792,000 (2010: HK$7,210,000)
in respect of contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit

schemes, net of forfeited contributions.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT)

BEEMSCHARTIH @ FBERMIE3HE -

o) &

10 FRIEH X H, (K R)

B T HBEE MR R R Z EREF T E
HFEEE 5 792, 00077 ( Z 2 — 4 : 7#5%7,210,000

Continuing operations ~ Discontinued operations Total
BESEER FRECEER B
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
2§ Z2-%F ZE8-—-% —T-%F ZE--§ ZZT-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AETr B%Tx BBt #B%Tr BETx
Current tax B HIE
Hong Kong &5 2,800 2,011 - 1,011 2,800 3,022
Overseas =g\ 1,601 - - = 1,601 =
(Over)/under-provision in BAEFERE
prior years (B%)/ TR 244 (165) (526) 239 (282) 74
4,645 1,846 (526) 1,250 4,119 3,096
Deferred tax BRI
Origination and reversal of TRHiEZRY
temporary differences EERED (2,249) (1,482) (297) (1,538) (2,546) (3,020)
Income tax expenses/(credit) VA C: )] 2,396 364 (823) (288) 1,573 76

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits after offsetting losses brought

forward of each individual company.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT) (continued)

11

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&6 M B WOk I A

Opverseas taxation including Australia, Macau, Singapore and Mainland
China taxation is calculated based on the rates applicable in the relevant

jurisdiction on the estimated assessable

profits.

Details of deferred tax are disclosed in note 29.

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the profit/
(loss) before taxation shown in the consolidated income statement as

10 FrE8iXH,(E&) @

BN IR BTN  ORP - FT AN K B A
IR - 5% 35 IR TY shAG AT R R T A 12 R AR Y

AZEBERMEMR B ERFTH -
BERETRIRZ BRI 295K 5 -

REFFEH T BREBES WS RIIR 2R
BiAns A, (B 18) ERm T :

follows:
2011 2010
—E-—fF —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRFAE A (B518)
— Continuing operations — BB (50,164) (26,057)
— Discontinued operations —SERNBREER 198,577 4,041
Adjust for: Share of results of associates ~ #J%& : AT {5 % NGIES (2,000) (221)
146,413 (22,237)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate RAH TS T K 16.5% 7T & 2 FiTH
of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) (ZZ—ZF : 16.5%) 24,158 (3,669)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries 7 E ftt 5% & & |: L NBARZ
operating in other jurisdictions TRR RS T 455 (94)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR H Z %Rff% ?/ E 11,539 5,529
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERHBAZ R G E (37,359) (708)
Tax effect of current year’s tax losses "“‘ EFEABRAZBEEBEZ
not recognised B E 3,062 1,081
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FRBE 3& HRZMEEBERZ
not previously recognised B8 - (2,115)
Tax effect of recognition of tax losses BERBERERZRBEEZ
not previously recognised DAE2 - (22)
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BEFE Tﬁé HBBZ),/ TR (282) 74
Income tax expenses P58 2 H 1,573 76
DIVIDENDS 11 KRR
2011 2010
—E——F —E—ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Special dividend of HK13.6 cents ER A Bl iR BB A% 13.6 A
(2010: nil) per share, paid —E—TF T }% i) 323,013 =
Interim dividend of nil IR A B AR B IR T AL
(2010: HKO.1 cent) per share, paid —E-F ¢ 0.1 711l) - 2,155
Final dividend of nil Fit Ik >R B Hﬁ B
(2010: HKO.5 cent) FRZEHN
per share, proposed —T—FF : 0.58) - 11,277
323,013 13,432
The 2010/11 special dividend of HK13.6 cents per share, totalling 2T/ ——FEHRIREER 1365 -
HK$323,013,000, was approved at the Board Meeting held on 13 July & B #323,013,000t ER T —FF+ A
2010 and paid on 30 July 2010. TEERTZESEgR FEME WERZ
E—ZFFLA=+HIKM

No final dividend has been proposed by the Directors of the Company

for the year ended 31 March 2011.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&6 M B WOk I G

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the profit/(loss)
attributable to equity holders of the Company as set out below by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

12 BRER,(FHE)

(@ SREARF(FE)VRETHIHHALT
B RS A FE (R R (B598) B DA B B B 7T

ERREB 2 mETFHEEE -

2011 2010
—B——-F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT
Loss attributable to equity holders RNAFIRHERE ARG
of the Company from FEAC KT
continuing operations ZEE (51,866) (26,421)
Profit attributable to equity holders YN 252 SN )
of the Company from IERFBREETS
discontinued operations 2 Al 199,400 4,329
147,534 (22,092)
Number Number
of shares of shares
KRG EE el 4=
’000 ’000
TR F A
Weighted average number of BETEERZ
ordinary shares in issue DnAE 39 £ 2,346,237 2,165,811
Basic earnings/(loss) per share REXRRBF,(EE)
(HK cents) GBAL)
— Continuing operations — B ET (2.21) (1.22)
— Discontinued operations —FRBEREER 8.50 0.20

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares granted under the Company’s
share option scheme. As the adjusted exercise price of the share options
granted by the Company was higher than the relevant average market
price of the Company’s shares for the years ended 31 March 2011 and
2010, those outstanding share options granted, which amounted to
150,000,000 shares (note 37(b)) as at 31 March 2011 and 2010, had no
dilutive effect on earnings per share for the years ended 31 March 2011
and 2010.

(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the Company was dealt

with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of loss of
HK$15,025,000 (2010: profit of HK$12,981,000).

(b) EREERF TR L IRARQRERER SR
HHTEEESEL AR E BITL B INE
FHEmMIELMAENE - ARARAFAERE
BRENKABRTEESRARRBRNDREZE
B4R ZFT-ZTF=ZA=F+—HILEFE
MEBTHIME MZEERTENERLE
KER=-_ZFE——FR_ZE—ZTF=A=1+—
H & 150,000,000 f% f% 1) (MI7E37(b)) HE = =
T——EF - T-—FE=A=1+—HILFEHD

BRENTESETE -

13 ARRREFEABME (BB, ER

FSTAR R BRI HER 2 ARG RIERE AR
(E518) /%t A /5 185 18 78 6 15,025,000 7T ( — & —

TLE FE T A 5 12,981,000 70 ) °
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14 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(a) On 29 June 2010, the Group entered into an agreement to dispose
80% of its equity interest in Pacific Coffee (Holdings) Limited and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Pacific Coffee Companies”) to China
Resources Enterprise, Limited. The disposal of 80% of equity interest
in the Pacific Coffee Companies (note 31(a)) was completed on 7 July
2010. The operation of the branded coffee shop business carried out
by the Pacific Coffee Companies up to the date of disposal is presented
in the consolidated financial statements of the Group as discontinued

operations.

(b) In view of the current market environment, the Group has no plan to
explore further opportunities in the natural resources industry and
decided to discontinue this business during the year. The operation of
natural resources business which incurred other losses of HK$5,143,000
(2010: nil), selling and distribution costs of HK$15,058,000 (2010:
HK$3,526,000) and administrative expenses of HK$1,506,000 (2010:
HK$52,000) is presented in the consolidated financial statements of the
Group as discontinued operations.

The results and cash flows of the discontinued operations included in
the consolidated income statement and the consolidated statement of
cash flows are set out below.

14
(a)

(b)

FIFEREFEK

RZZE—ZTFRAZ+THIAB AEEFTLH
=M EBHAIEAR QA S HE R Pacific Coffee
(Holdings) Limited & E KB A 7] (& 7& [ Pacific
Coffee Companies | ) Z 80% X #& © 7Z Pacific Coffee
Companies 80% IR —ZFE —FF+ A+ H5%
B S (i sE31(a)) » B2 & BE » B Pacific
Coffee Companies &% & 2 ff h& W BE J5 3£ 75 7 28
SEZEREMBRER 2NN RS ELCEES -

BERBRMSERE  AEELEFEE—F
FRAARERITE  WAETRFRRIEZEE
e RABREBRKEEEAZEMEREK
5,143,000 L (ZFE—ZF : T) - HERLHEK
7N ¥ 15,058,000 70 (= ZF — T4 : %8 3,526,000
JC) M AT Z B #1,506,000 7T (= T — T 4F ¢
B 52,0007T) F RAEBESRETIEREREY A
B CEER -

AARE KSR REERERERZ FHEL
BEBEELAESREFNTX -

2011 2010

—E——F —E—TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT BT

Revenue YA 76,000 299,909
Cost of sales $HE R A (18,831) (76,957)

Gross profit EH 57,169 222,952

Other income, net Habh U A - FEE 38 319

Other gains, net Hh e - F5E 214,173 930
Selling and distribution costs SHE R AS SH A A (71,132) (218,302)
Administrative expenses T H (1,673) (1,866)

Operating profit 4 A 198,575 4,033

Finance income A 2 8

Profit before taxation R 56 A g Al 198,577 4,041

Income tax credit FriEHiER 823 288

Profit for the year from REFFHBEELEEB 2

discontinued operations FE A 199,400 4,329

Net cash from operating activities KEREEB 2R FR 2,867 26,866
Net cash used in investing activities ARREXRB 2R FR (1,723) (11,254)
Net cash used in financing activities ARREXB 2R TR - (2,644)

Net cash from REFFERLEERZ
discontinued operations B&F5E 1,144 12,968
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15 1% - BMERRE

The Group RKE
Store  Furniture,
machine, fixtures,
leasehold office
Prepaid improvements  equipment
lease and  and motor
payments  Buildings  equipment vehicles Total
RS B RE
505 HENE BLERE
HEHRE BF ZRERRE RAE “E
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
BT A¥Tx  BETr  B¥Tr  B¥Tx
Cost %N
At 1 April 2009, as previously reported RZZZNFNA—B(EAZR) - 3,710 139,369 3,755 146,834
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 RMBEGTERE 175 (BETA)

(Amendment) ZHE 6,790 - = = 6,790
At 1 April 2009, as restated N\ZZTNEWA—B (&) 6,790 3,710 139,369 3,755 153,624
Exchange realignment R - - 771 - 771
Additions RE = = 30,222 283 30,505
Disposal/write-off HE /Mg = = (24,394) (54) (24,448)
At 31 March 2010, as restated N\ZZ-ZF=A=1—R(F]) 6,790 3,710 145,968 3,984 160,452
Exchange realignment B i R - - 539 - 539
Additions NE - - 10,798 44 10,842
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 30(a)) W B B B 2 ) (B 30(a) - - 50,802 - 50,802
Disposal of interests in subsidiaries HEMEREAR 2R

(note 31(a)) (B zE31(a)) (5,150) (1,550) (98,940) (3,495) (109,135)

Disposal/write-off HE /Mg - - (9,986) (481) (10,467)
At 31 March 2011 —2——f=A=1-H 1,640 2,160 99,181 52 103,033
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 25t 7 & KRl &
At 1 April 2009 RZZENFNA—H - - 60,847 2,601 63,448
Exchange realignment B i R - - 585 - 585
Charge for the year FEHE 158 146 31,034 938 32,276
Reversal of impairment loss BEBEER - - (333) - (333)
Disposal/write-off HE /i = = (23,489) (14) (23,503)
At 31 March 2010, as restated N\ZE-ZE=A=+—H(&J) 158 146 68,644 3,525 72,473
Exchange realignment [ & 2 - - 257 - 257
Charge for the year FERE 58 115 21,348 49 21,570
Impairment loss REREE - - 1,960 - 1,960
Disposal of interests in subsidiaries kel NG -

(note 31(a)) (Hi3E31(a)) (168) (51) (65,061) (3,179) (68,459)
Disposal/write-off HE /M - - (9,657) (386) (10,043)
At 31 March 2011 —2——%5=RA=1-H 48 210 17,491 9 17,758
Carrying amount fl'ﬁ@ﬁ
At 31 March 2011 N = 1,592 1,950 81,690 43 85,275
At 31 March 2010, as restated RZZE-ZE=A=+—H(E]) 6,632 3,564 77,324 459 87,979
At 1 April 2009, as restated RZZZENFHA—H(E5) 6,790 3,710 78,522 1,154 90,176

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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G0 W R I A
16 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16 PGB A R 2w
The Company NN
(a) Interests in subsidiaries (a) FTEMEB AR ZfER
2011 2010
—2——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BET T BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost FELEmRGD - KA E 25,000 208,870
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE U5 B 8 A AR 3R
— non-current portion —3IEE HiEh 1 164,954 366,965
Less: Provision for impairment R E B
(note 16(c)) (Ff=E16(c)) - (160,840)
189,954 414,995
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and FE BT BB R RIIR SR A EIE IR - 25 B R g
have no pre-determined repayment terms. TEMEBIRK
The amounts due from subsidiaries are denominated in the following JE KPS B8 R RIR TR IA N3 B8 A BT
currencies:
2011 2010
—2——F —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BET T BT
Hong Kong dollar B K 164,954 309,549
Singapore dollar 7 h03% TT - 51,745
Renminbi AR - 5,671
164,954 366,965
The carrying amounts approximate their fair values. IREEEE AR EEE -
Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2011 are AR T ——F=A=+—HZFXEZMNBA
set out in note 41. Al Z B H A M4 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A MR

16 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16 Fr{EMiB A B 2w (&)
The Company (continued) AT (&)

(b) FEW(FEAY) BB A RIIRK - EHIBH

(b) Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries — current portion

2011 2010

—2——F —T-FF

HK$’000 HK$°000

BETT BT

Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W Bt B8 2 B iR 3K 3 37,164

Less: Provision for impairment R E R

(note 16(c)) (B¥sE16(c)) - (39)

3 37,125

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$°000

BT BT T

Amount due to a subsidiary JFE A< — Fid BT J88 2 R R 5% 80 -

s, (AR BRBIRRAEER 28 -
WARBREEERABEBEMN - HIREE
HEHENAERE °

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand and denominated in Hong Kong dollar. The
carrying amounts approximate their fair values.

(c) Movement of provision for impairment () WERE2D
2011 2010
=25 i
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT
At 1 April REA—H 160,879 170,266
Written off 55 (130,238) -
Impairment loss recognised EHERREER - 32,332
Reversal of impairment loss BB 5 18 % o] (30,641) (41,719)
At 31 March R=A=+—H — 160,879

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17 BEEE

The Group A&
Favourable
Goodwill Trademarks leases Total
BE [} BAHEE waE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT BMTR  BETR
At 1 April 2009 R-ZZZTNFMA—H 136,853 118,337 = 255,190
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 30(b)) WEE— KT B A A (MisE30 (b)) 5,117 - - 5,117
Adjustment arising from finalisation BELE—M
of purchase consideration for step-up BEDAZ
acquisition of interest in an associate BENBBEREELZHE (661) - - (661)
Amortisation 5 = (7,889) = (7,889)
Impairment loss recognised (note 7) BERRREESE(ME7) (29,174) = = (29,174)
At 31 March 2010 RZE-—ZF=H=+—H 112,135 110,448 - 222,583
Disposal of interests in subsidiaries I B BB A B 2 e
(note 31(a)) (MzE31(a)) (34,260) (99,000) - (133,260)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 30(a)) W g M B~ R (HiaE30(a)) 19,888 13,639 11,855 45,382
Amortisation 5 - (3,007) (741) (3,748)
Impairment loss recognised (note 7) BRRRERSE (HE7) (35,335) - - (35,335)
At 31 March 2011 R-ZE-——F=H=+—H 62,428 22,080 11,114 95,622

The trademarks and favourable leases were purchased as parts of
business combinations. As at 31 March 2011, the trademarks, after
amortisation, of HK$22,080,000 (2010: HK$9,648,000) and the
favourable leases, after amortisation, of HK$11,114,000 (2010: nil) are
related solely to the continuing restaurant and bar business.

The trademarks and favourable leases are considered by the management
of the Group as having finite lives of 15 years and 4 years, respectively.

The amortisation of trademarks of HK$3,007,000 (2010: HK$7,889,000)
and favourable leases of HK$741,000 (2010: nil) is included in selling
and distribution costs.

The trademarks and favourable leases will be tested for impairment
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired. Particulars
of impairment testing are disclosed in note 4(a) and as follows:

BABEZRENHEENEBEHEFR 37 -
R-E——FE=F=+—H HHEE@mEAE
#5 22,080,000 7T (= F —ZF : 5% 9,648,000 7T )
NEEEBRNAE ABEE 11,114,000 (ZF —
TFE: R GEFHBESCEEREMBIMER -

AEBERERA RERBAFNBAEERAE
RAERD R EISFRAF -

PIIE 8 A B 63,007,000 (=2 —F4F : B
17,889,000 7T ) & & | 10 & # §5 & 78 & 741,000
T(ZZE—ZF : T)BFAHEE REHMKA °

BELBEREDRKE  SEEkAFHA
EETRERDR  RMERHAZFERH E4(a)
RBBEWT
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LA B AR I A

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
The Group (continued)

7 BIEEEE @)
AEE(E)

Impairment tests for goodwill, trademarks and favourable leases
(a) Food and beverages — restaurant and bar business

BE BERAFNEEZRERR
(a) BEN—-EBEREEEE

During the period ended 30 September 2010, in the view of
unstable global economic environment, management has made an
impairment loss of HK$30,218,000 on the goodwill allocated to the
Group’s restaurant and bar business. The loss has been included in
other losses in these consolidated financial statements.

Goodwill, after impairment, of HK$62,428,000 (2010: HK$72,758,000),
trademarks, after amortisation, of HK$22,080,000 (2010:
HK$9,648,000) and favourable leases, after amortisation, of
HK$11,114,000 (2010: nil) are allocated to the Group’s continuing
restaurant and bar business. The estimated recoverable amount is
based on fair value less costs to sell. These calculations use post-tax
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the
management covering a one-year period. Cash flows beyond the
one-year period are extrapolated using a 3% growth rate per annum
up to the fifth year and zero growth rate per annum from the sixth
year to fifteen year, gross margin of 76% and a discount rate of 14%
per annum. No further impairment was made as of 31 March 2011.

(b) Food and beverages — branded coffee shop business

As at 31 March 2010, goodwill, after impairment, of HK$34,260,000
and trademarks, after amortisation, of HK$100,800,000 were allocated
to the Group’s branded coffee shop business.

(b)

REBEE-_T—ZTFLA=ZTHILHHE A&
ERNEIREERES(LERN  EEEER
%EEEﬁ%@EﬁKF&@DEﬁikZ%%%E
ﬁ/‘mﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%aozlsoooﬁ ZEBEER
%,ﬁ?é\ﬁﬁ‘%#&%#kﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ °

B (B 1 78 62,428,000 C( = B — T F ¢
75 #572,758,000 JC) Z A E KRB E B
22,080,0007C ( == —Z4F : %%9,648,0007T)
2 PEAZ N £ 12 5 511,114,000 T (= T —

T T) AARBRHREAREY
A T B o {21 AT M B IR

%E&EQﬁ@ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁm SN
ENGERAEEEE MR —FHMBKE
BoRBBELREEN —FREEFRF
ZHEeEREL R AT F30RIEFENFE
EFTRFATEBER £FX76% K F
FUHRRUNMEE - HE_T——F =
A=+— B EETE—FTRE-

EE— BB M £ 5

R-EBE—TF=A=+—8: BE%E
75 #534,260,000 70 2 7 OB K B 1R B
100,800,000 7T Z FHIZE R EEE A K E A &

REOMEE 27 -

(c) Natural resources (c) AAREZE
An impairment loss of HK$5,117,000 (2010: nil) was made on the SREAREBRAERESH G EREE
goodwill allocated to the Group’s natural resources business as the 1B AEK5117,00 L (ZE—FE: F) -
management decided to discontinue this business during the year. W THEREBERENAREERIFZET

EEEDNEEERERM SR REER 2B
EXREMNE MAEAZUEBREB/RIEL 2N
X BRBRZEXZBZHBERR -

Management’s determination of budgeted growth rates and gross
margins is based on the past performance and market expectations. The
discount rate used is post-tax and reflects specific risks relating to these
businesses.

18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
The Group

18 FrihBeE
AEE

(a) FREBEE QAR zER

Az

(a) Interestsin associates

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
At 1 April RmA—A 932 1,079
Fair value of retained interests in AR 8 A AR BB =
former subsidiaries (note 31(a)) Z AR E(HEE3L(a)) 53,095 -
Acquisition of associates in VA P A7) 52 424z B it 4 1 )
the Share Exchange (note 30(a)) (Pff5E30 (a)) 1,064 —
Share of results Pk 245 2,000 221
Share of exchange fluctuation reserves T 1l JNE 5 #2)% B) ( # 106 =
Dividend received 2 U % B (141) (368)
At 31 March R=A=+—8 57,056 932

R_T——F=7= +—RB FihBE AR Z
R BEEE BB 21,370,000 T(= 2 T
75 5 448,000 7T ) °

74 HIZTEEBRERAT

Interests in associates as at 31 March 2011 included goodwill of
HK$21,370,000 (2010: HK$448,000).

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited



18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&6 M B WOk I A

18 FrihBt=E DAl 2 )

The Group (continued) AEE(E)
Interests in associates (continued) (a) FTIEEEE AT ZRER(E)
Details of the Group’s associates, which are unlisted, are as follows: AREBZIEFTHBE AT ZHBNOT :
Effective
percentage
Place or of issued
country of share capital/
incorporation registered
or registration/ Class of capital held
Name of company operation shares by the Group Principal activities
AR RS E3:1 R 12 51 _ARERAR TEXEHB
HEX BRITRA M
REZEBED L
Indirectly
F:3
%
Chevalier Catering Management Mainland China Not applicable 20 Operation of coffee shops
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd (note)
HIEmge o B A 3 TER ek E
(L&) AR 2R (&)
Chevalier Pacific Catering Management Mainland China Not applicable 20 Operation of coffee shops
(Beijing) Company Limited (note)
ET- AV FERER o B A 3 TER ks
(A5 AR AR (HE)
Henfield Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 30 Operation of a restaurant
EMERARRA B g Re—MHER
Orchid International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 30 Operation of a bar
HERRERLQ A B Ef R —REE
Pacific Coffee Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 20 Trading of coffee products,
operation of coffee shops
and provision of
i maintenance services
KEFMERR AR BB g M EmE 5 -
18I 5
REEERERE
Pacific Coffee Company (S) Pte Ltd Singapore Ordinary 20 Operation of coffee shops
TN g ks
Pacific Coffee (Holdings) Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary 20 Investment holding
RBRZRE i REZR
PCC Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 20 Operation of coffee shops
KEEMPEREBR AT Bt g ks
PCC Investment (II) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 20 Operation of coffee shops
AFFMERE () BRAA Bt g ks
Note: BT
Established in Mainland China as wholly foreign owned enterprises. ASNE 2B BERTBAMAKL

Annual Report 2011 75 =T ——FF
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(a)

(b)

19

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&6 M B WOk I G

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
The Group (continued)

Interests in associates (continued)
Summary of financial information of the Group’s associates is as
follows:

18

(a)

Fr G B & A R 2 f 2k ()
A (45)

Frib B & 2 B 2 i s ()
AEBZBERRZUMBERNBRELT

Assets  Liabilities Revenue Profit

EE 8f& N Y Al

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

BETT BT BT BETx

2011 —E——%F 230,143 59,095 280,923 9,086
2010 —E-ZTF 1,484 516 7,593 442

No commitment and contingent liability of Group’s associates is shared
by the Group.

i%@ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%@ﬂp%@ﬁZ%%&ﬁi%ﬁ

f& o

Amounts due from associates (b) FEUWLEE & D BIR K
Amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest-free and repayable F’Fé Ui B % NG f|3§ F7A 75’.? — %ﬁﬁ C BB WRRE
on demand and denominated in Hong Kong dollar. The carrying SR :5: BRNABEREM - HIREEEE AR
amounts approximate their fair values. EEE -
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 19 AEHEZRE
The Group A&
Available-for-sale investment as at 31 March comprises: R=A=+—BAftHEZREBLE :
2011 2010
—F——F b
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BETT
Investment in a venture capital fund,  REIEES ZKE -
at fair value BAREE 5,405 5,405

The carrying amount of available-for-sale investment is denominated in
US dollar.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited

AHEEZRENIRBAEAETREN -

76 HIZEEBRERAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&6 M B WOk I G

20 INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT

OR LOSS
The Group

Investments at fair value through profit or loss as at 31 March comprise:

20 REBIRBEAANEREZRE

rEE

R=ZA=1+—8 REZIKREZAAREREZ
EBIE

2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT

Derivative financial instruments TEERTH
— put option (note 31(a)) —3Roh HA#E (M =E31 (a)) 26,401 -

Unlisted investments FELEMIKRE

— mutual funds —-BERES 81 327
26,482 327

The fair value of the put option was assessed at HK$36,360,000 as at the
date of grant and HK$26,401,000 as at 31 March 2011 (the “Valuation
Date”). This results in a fair value loss of HK$9,959,000 included under
other losses of the consolidated financial statements. The fair value was
assessed by Jones Lang LaSalle Sallmanns, a firm of independent valuers,
using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The significant inputs into
the model included the value of the equity interest at the Valuation
Date, exercise price, expected life of the option, annual risk-free rate and
expected volatility which was based on the statistical analysis of volatility
of weekly share prices of comparable companies over the last three years
before the Valuation Date.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss are denominated in the
following currencies:

RO EAREBHZAARABETIRABE
36,360,000 TN —E——F=A=+—H(14
B HH ) &% 26,401,000 7T * E M3 B A A
B E5 1875 5 9,959,000 TL T A &5 & B 5 3Rk H At
EEET - AR EHBYHEMA P ERT
FAMERARER —HAHEEEENETT
%o BRAZEZHASIEBERENGER S
ZEE 17FEE HEzESTFH  ZERERF
PR RIBHEEHEE (THREA]E LKA AR
gﬁa%%zimﬁ@%%Zﬁ@@@%%ﬁ
S e

REDRE AR EREZRANTIERRE

fi :

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$°000

BET T BT

Hong Kong dollar Bt 26,401 -
US dollar e 81 327
26,482 327

Annual Report 2011 /7 =T ——FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LA M RR A
INVENTORIES 21 8

The Group b=
2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Food and beverages ZR 7,158 11,560
Consumable stores FER YR 580 2,075
7,738 13,635

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in cost of
sales amounted to HK$87,511,000 (2010: HK$113,032,000).

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

FERAEHERATHYEBHEREERAR
ZIFEKAR BB 87,511,000 (—ZF —Z4F ¢
75 1113,032,000 7T) °

22 BRIRFR - FHERERBMNFA

The Group The Company
i 3 AN
2011 2010 2011 2010

—g-—% -T-TF —$——F -T-TF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BETR  BEETR

Trade debtors B 5 I Wk % 10,629 6,219 - -~

Other debtors, deposits and prepayments  H I EUIR N - 7 iR & R HIE 31,493 52,400 312 531
42,122 58,619 312 531

Analysed for reporting purposes: 1E3R&E Rk 2 o -

Non-current assets FnBEE 15,821 23,457 - -

Current assets mBEE 26,301 35,162 312 531
42,122 58,619 312 531

The Group has established different credit policies for customers in each
of its core businesses. The credit periods granted to customers ranges
from 30 to 45 days except for sales of food and beverages at restaurants
and bars, and coffee shops, which are mainly on cash basis.

The ageing analysis of trade debtors is as follows:

AEEHSEAZOEF 2 RFERLTRZE
BHR - BREREREE - LA R WEEE 2 &6
EFXTURGHEEIN L TEFREEFEEHN
F30%45H o

B RBIRRZIRE DT

The Group
rER

2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BETT
0 — 60 days 0-60H 9,966 5,344
61 —90 days 61-90H 189 374
Over 90 days #190 H 474 501
10,629 6,219

As at 31 March 2011, trade debtors of HK$6,321,000 (2010: HK$3,903,000)
were past due but not impaired. These relate to individuals or companies
for whom there is no recent history of default.

R-TE——F=ZA=+—08  22HE&ERH
B2 8 5 WK KA 16,321,000 L( —ZF —
T FE#3,903,000 7T ) © 5% 7k IA L {E A A A
B MEFEKRGEEDOLDE

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited 78 HEtZHERAERAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&6 M B WOk I G

22 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

22 EWIRF - FHEZEESRFBMNRE @

The Group
RE

2011 2010
—E-—fF — T T4
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BT
Up to 60 days past due #Hi 60 H A 5,658 3,452
61 — 90 days past due #HI61%E 90 B 189 304
Over 90 days past due BHEI90 B LA = 474 147
6,321 3,903

Trade debtors’ balances that are neither past due nor impaired mainly
relate to individuals or companies that have been the Group’s customers
for more than six months with no history of default in the past.

As at 31 March 2011 and 2010, none of the trade debtor’s balance was
individually determined to be impaired and related to customer that
was in financial difficulties. Consequently, no specific provision for
impairment was recognised as at the end of each reporting period. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The carrying amounts of trade debtors are denominated in the following
currencies:

W ARBATARE L E 5 IR EREEE R A
BARRARER  HEFGHHAEEBENHEHA
BBEYEEOTERZER

RZE——FR_ZE—ZFTF=A=+—H #
B2 5 e Wk TR (8 Bl 788 5E R (B B2 7 B 7S
MEt v xPAM - At - REEARSE BRI E
BRI ERE - AEEWER RS LR
HBHERM o

BHRWIRK ZIREER T E8 RBEM

The Group
KE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Macau Pataca SR TT 6,923 =
Hong Kong dollar B 2,052 6,166
Other currencies Hibh &% 1,654 53
10,629 6,219

Hi IR R FHRE 2 REER TIEE

The carrying amounts of other debtors and deposits are denominated in
the following currencies:

REAL

The Group The Company
S 3 FRHE
2011 2010 2011 2010

—¥-—-% —T-TF —B--F —T-Tf
HK$000 ~ HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$000
BETR EETT EEFR  RETR

Hong Kong dollar ke
Macau Pataca HEPITT
Renminbi AR
Singapore dollar 03 7T

The carrying amounts of debtors and deposits approximate their fair

values.

22,833 44,019 312 531
2,741 = - =
9 328 - =

- 1,884 - -
25,583 46,231 312 531

EYIRA R F L RE ZRAERE A AERE °

Annual Report 2011 79 —T——&FRH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&6 W ek W AR
23 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 23 RERRITHEER
The Group The Company
rE NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
=B—-Ff _ZT-TF ZB--—-F _T-ITF
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BETT BT BETT
Short-term bank deposits 5 HRITER - 43,196 - 43,196
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFRERE 84,638 68,440 23,326 906
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBeEEY 84,638 111,636 23,326 44,102
Pledged bank deposits BEEBRITER 835 = - =
Total cash and bank balances Re MIRITHEBBE 85,473 111,636 23,326 44,102
Cash and bank balances comprise cash held, short-term bank deposits B RRITEREEAFRS  REIHHRA
with an original maturity of three months or less and cash placed with =18 A AR 2 5B BRIT I 0 R R B i
financial institutions. FRAZ®E o
As at 31 March 2011, short-term bank deposit amounting to HK$835,000 75’\\ T —F=A=+—H EBHETEIE
(2010: nil) was pledged to a bank for general banking facilities. 1835000 L (—F—FF : )M T — MR
TAMBE —RI|ITEE -
As at 31 March 2010, the effective interest rate on short-term bank RZT—ZEFE=A=+—H0 BHRTERZ
deposits is 0.2% per annum and these deposits have an average maturity ERFEER2WAZEFRN THEHE
of 16 days. PRA16H °
The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances approximate their fair Be MRITHEBZIREERE AR ERE -
values.
The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances are denominated in the Be RIRITHERZIREENL NI EEREL :
following currencies:
The Group The Company
x5 ERF
2011 2010 2011 2010
—2-—-f —T-TF 8- _—T-THF
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$000
BT AETFT BT BT
Hong Kong dollar K 37,481 73,208 5,739 30,636
US dollar W 22,417 33,508 17,563 13,443
Australian dollar BT 22,177 - - -
Macau Pataca SBPIIT 3,337 = - =
Renminbi AR® 37 2,613 - -
Singapore dollar N T - 2,284 - =
Other currencies Hth 5 ¥ 24 23 24 23
85,473 111,636 23,326 44,102

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited 80 HEtZHERERAT




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M HRE M

24 CREDITORS, DEPOSITS AND ACCRUALS

24 EAREF - FARESRTBRER

The Group The Company
rE NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
=B—-Ff _ZT-TF ZB--—-F _T-ITF
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT BETT
Trade creditors RV L 15,942 12,526 - -
Other creditors, deposits HiEMIRR  FARSE
and accruals LERER 45,220 39,925 582 1,329
61,162 52,451 582 1,329
The ageing analysis of trade creditors is as follows: B ZENIRRZIRER DT
The Group
ARE
2011 2010
=F——F —F %7
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT
0 — 60 days 0-60H 15,731 12,391
61 — 90 days 61-90 B 86 -
Over 90 days #190 H 125 135
15,942 12,526
The carrying amounts of trade creditors are denominated in the B ZENIRRZIREEN T &SRB
following currencies:
The Group
E
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT
Hong Kong dollar B 10,416 11,475
Australian dollar SEIT 3,556 -
Macau Pataca SR TT 1,970 =
Singapore dollar TN T - 630
Renminbi AR - 233
Other currencies EhEE - 188
15,942 12,526

Annual Report 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&6 M B WOk I G

CREDITORS, DEPOSITS AND ACCRUALS (continued)

The carrying amounts of other creditors are denominated in the
following currencies:

24 ERRF - EARERFBERERA®
HA S IR 2K 2 R E A T 51| 55 4 B BB 47

The Group The Company
EN ARHE

2011 2010 2011 2010
—%-—-% —T-TF ZB--F —T-Tf
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
BETRT  EETT BETR  EETR
Hong Kong dollar ok 186 6,569 159 346
Renminbi AR - 173 - -
Singapore dollar 03 7T - 78 - -

The carrying amounts of trade creditors and other creditors
approximate their fair values.

AMOUNT DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The amount due to ultimate holding company is unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

The amount due to ultimate holding company is denominated in Hong
Kong dollar. The carrying amount approximates its fair value.

186 6,820 159 346

BHRMIRKEEMEMIRRZIREERELR
RERE -

25 B ERAZER D FRK
T RAEIERA R IR AERIER - 28 RAR
ERIGEE -

JER R AAE PR R AR A B B R B AL - HIRE
BEAANAERE -

BANK BORROWINGS 26 RITERK
The Group RE&E
Asat31 March  Asat 31 March As at 1 April
2011 2010 2009
R=Z——% RKR-ZT-FTF RNR_ZTNF
=A=+—H =A=+—H MmA—H
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
BT T BT BT T
(restated)
(&%)
(note 2(a)(i))
(P& 2(a) (@)
The bank borrowings are due for RITEFKIE T 3
repayment as follows: FEIER -
Within one year R—FR - 16,500 6,207
More than one year but not exceeding ~ — F LA 181N i M
two years (note (i)) GEIO)) - - 22,116
- 16,500 28,323
Secured (note (ii)) B (5 (i) - - 1,812
Unsecured R - 16,500 26,511
- 16,500 28,323

The bank borrowings bear floating interest rates at an average effective
interest rate of nil (2010: 0.6%) per annum.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited

RITETIZZHFERAE  FHEBREE XA
T(ZZE—ZF :0.6%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&6 M B WOk I G

BANK BORROWINGS (continued)
The Group (continued)

As at 31 March 2010, the bank borrowings were denominated in Hong
Kong dollar. The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximated
their fair values. The exposure of the bank borrowings to interest-rate
changes and the contractual repricing dates were below six months.

Notes:
(i) The bank borrowings due were based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the

loan agreements and the effects of any repayment on demand clause were ignored.

(ii)  The loan was secured by prepaid lease payments and building held by a subsidiary with
carrying amounts of HK$3,800,000.

26 S|RITEF@E®

REE(E)

RZB-—FF=F=+—H RITERAEE
REM - RITERZREAELZERIAERE
RITIEFRPAE H 2 MR B F) 2 4 E B3 E B2
HE/NEAAT -

B -
() B2 R ERARRGRAR L S B RE AR -
b BB TR BRE AR Z M -

(i) ZEEFH—HEHERQ R TR REE S 3,800,000
TTE TR HE & FRE RAEF AT -

SHARE CAPITAL 27 IR
Number
of shares
fi& 7 1 B
’000 HK$’000
T A% BT T
Authorised ordinary shares: ETE B A
At 31 March 2010 and RZZE—ZF=A=+—HK
31 March 2011 of —T——F=A=1+—HH
HK$0.05 per share TR 0.057T 3,500,000 175,000
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares: B #1717 R EHE K L@ :
At 1 April 2009 of HK$0.50 per share R _ZZTAFHA—HW
FREH 0.50 7T 215,540 107,770
Issue of shares (note (i)) A& (7 817 (MIEE () 10,000 5,000
Share sub-division & 17 35 48 2,029,860 —
At 31 March 2010 and 1 April 2010 RZE—ZTF=A=+—HBK
of HK$0.05 per share —ET-TFMA—HH
B 0.057T 2,255,400 112,770
Issue of shares (note (ii)) % 17 2 17 (B 5 (i) 119,695 5,985
At 31 March 2011 of RZZE——F=A=+—HH
HKS$0.05 per share BIR A 0.057T 2,375,095 118,755
Notes: B 3

(i)  For the year ended 31 March 2010, the Company issued 10,000,000 new shares to
an independent third party on 22 February 2010. The proceeds of the issue of shares
before expenses amounted to HK$23,000,000. The net proceeds of the issue of shares
amounted to HK$22,339,000 after deducting the expenses of the issue.

(ii)  For the year ended 31 March 2011, the Company issued 119,695,000 new shares
to an independent third party on 28 June 2010. The proceeds of the issue of shares
before expenses amounted to HK$63,439,000. The net proceeds of the issue of shares
amounted to HK$61,234,000 after deducting the expenses of the issue.

(iii) Details of the Group’s share options are disclosed in note 37.

(i) BE-Z-—TF=A=+-—ALFE AQFRR=ZF
—TF A+ HR—&BE =7 % 71710,000,000
ARFTAR 15 o FE IR 2 AT 2 IR B ATE PR 15 RIB B
& 23,000,000 7T, © FE PR EEAT X 18 2 IRID BITHFTE
RIE T BB A A 22,339,000 T ©

(i) BE-Z——F=A=+—"ALFE AQFRR=ZF
—ZFRNAZ+/\BRA—BBE =7 517 119,695,000
ARFTAR 15 o FEH R 2 AT 2 IR BATE RS I BB
¥ 63,439,000 7T, © FEMPR AT X L8 2 RID BITHFTE
RIE T 5B A A 61,234,000 7T ©

(i) HRAAREEMBAE L BT 73R o
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&6 M B WOk I G

28 RESERVES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

28 fABERFERER

The Group A&
Capital Share  Exchange Asset
Share  redemption option fluctuation  revaluation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
AERE WEE NERE  AESE
RivEE 51 e FIREE [ ZAER &%
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
BRI AT A%TR B%TRn BETR  BETR BETx
At 1 April 2009 R-ZTHAEMA—R 338,035 14 - 3,648 136 (44141) 297,692
Comprehensive loss: REFE:
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - - (22,092) (22,092)
Other comprehensive income/ (loss): Htp2ElE/ (FiE) :
Exchange difference on translation BEBIRBRARRBMES
of operations of overseas subsidiaries LHNERBER = - - 315 - - 315
Change in fair value A E 7R ER
of available-for-sale investment RAAEEE - - - - (1,573) - (1,573)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale R R lERN
investment transferred AEHE 7 RER
to consolidated income statement REER = = = = 2,345 = 2,345
Total comprehensive income/ FE2ENE/
(loss) for the year (BB &% = = = 315 77 (22,09)  (21,005)
Transactions with owners BREBAET 2R
Dividends paid BRRRE - - = = = (4,311) (4,311)
Issue of shares (note 27) BIRMG (Far) 18,000 = = = = = 18,000
Share issuance costs BIRHER (661) - - - - - (661)
Share option-consultancy services received & IR 1E — £ 155 AR 15 = = 862 = = - 862
Total transactions with owners HEEAETZRZHE 17,339 = 862 = = (4311) 13,890
At31 March 2010 RZF-FF=A=1-A 355,374 14 862 3,963 908 (7054) 290,577

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited

84 HIZEERERAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&6 M B WOk I G

28 RESERVES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

28 fAERFERESR

(continued) (&)
The Group (continued) TEE(E)
Retained
Capital Share  Exchange Asset  profits/ Non-
Share redemption  option fluctuation revaluation (accumulated Total ~controlling
premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  losses)  reserves inferests Total
BABED  BBE SEXR REER REEN,/  BE  #ER
RoRE  RE  RE YIRE &6 (BHER) ag  B& ag
HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS'000  HKS$'000
ABTR BNTL EMTR AMTR RTR ANTL EMTR ARTR ARTR
At31 March 2010 RZE-FE==1-H 355,374 ! 862 3963 908 (1054) 290577 - 29057
Comprehensive income: 2EkE:
Profit for the year ERER - - - - S U4 S YA (694) 146840
Other comprehensive income (loss): Rb2EkE/ (B8
Exchange difference on translation EErE eSS
of operations of overseas subsidiaries HELZER RESE - - - 485 - - 485 0 687
Exchange difference released upon disposal of RLEEMIBR A XK
operations of overseas subsidiaries MERZNERREE - - - (372 - - (3722) - (3,722)
Gain on the Share Exchange (note 30(a)) TRip 2 e (B330(a)) - - - - - 2437 2437 - 2437
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year FERENE/(BRIEE 000 - - - 6@ - 9T e () 162
Transactions with owners HEFAETZRE
Transfer share premium to retained profits RAEEERZRAER (355,374) - - - - 33374 - - -
Dividends paid EffRE - - - - - (334888)  (334,388) - (334,888)
Issue of shares (note 27) R17hdn (Witor) 57454 - - - - -4 - 54
Share issuance costs BIRHER (2,205) - - - - - (20 - (2005)
Acquisition of subsidiaries YEHB AR
(note 30(a)) (Hf3£30() - - - - - - - 17408 17,408
Non-controlling interests recognised on RRARARRZ FERER
the Share Exchange (note 30(a)) (F5E30(a)) - - - - - - - 31,830 31,830
Dividend payable to non-controlling interests ENFEERER 2 RS - - - - - - - (8,925) (8,925)
Share option-consultancy services received BRE-EGHARE - - 6,420 - - - 6,420 - 6,420
Total transactions with owners HEEARTZR54E (300,125) - 6,420 - - 248 (273219) 40313 (232,906)
At31 March 2011 R-E--%=f=t-A 55,49 14 7,282 726 908 99,913 164,092 39,821 203,913
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&6 M B WOk I G

28 RESERVES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

28 fAERFERESR

(continued) (&)
The Company NN
Retained
Capital Share profits/
Share Contributed redemption option (accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses) Total
EARE BRE REEN/
RiEE HABKR ik W (RHER) ag
HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
BT BT ERTR ERTn BETr B%Tn
(note)
(MzE)
At 1 April 2009 R-EENENA-A 338,035 6,226 14 - 1095 35500
Comprehensive income: RENE
Profit for the year FERET - - - - 12,981 12,981
Total comprehensive income for theyear ~ FE2HANHEAE - - - - 12,981 12,981
Transactions with owners BEBAETZRS
Dividends paid BEfRE - = = = (4311) (4,311)
Issue of shares (note 27) B (HisE27) 18,000 - - - - 18,000
Share issuance costs EIRnER (661) = = = = (661)
Share option-consultancy services received R 1E — /5 AR - - - 862 - 862
Total transactions with owners BREAETZRSAE 17,339 = = 862 (4311) 13,89
At31 March 2010 RIZ-ZF=/=+-H 355,374 6,226 14 862 19595 382,071
Comprehensive loss: REEE:
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - (15,025) (15,025)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEXEBRAR - - - - (15025 (15025)
Transactions with owners BEBAETZRS
Transfer share premium to R EERE
contributed surplus GABH (355,374) 355,374 - - - -
Dividends paid BRRE - (33,013 - - (11,875)  (334,888)
Issue of shares (note 27) EIRG (M2 57,454 - - - - 57,454
Share issuance costs FIRHER (2,205) - - - - (2,205)
Share option-consultancy services received ~ BE R 1E — /5 A ARE - - - 6,420 - 6,420
Total transactions with owners HEBAETZRZLE (300,125) 32,361 - 6420 (11,875  (273,219)
At31 March 2011 R=2--%=f=1-A 549 38,587 478 (1305)  938%7
Note: B 3 -

The balance represents the difference between the value of net assets of subsidiaries acquired
and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition. Under the
Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus of the Company
is available for distribution to shareholders.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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29 DEFERRED TAX

The Group

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred tax relates to the same fiscal authority.
The net amounts are as follows:

29 IEFERLIE
FEME

fird A8 AT K 58 Sl 1T 2 REA 5 & BATR I & A 4K
$HE HAT 1A & (8 & & I A 75 18 B[R] — B T
f%@ﬁ% CREMIBEERBEGREHE - R
N

2011 2010
—B——-F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T SR
Deferred tax assets BRI IR & B (4,150) (1,476)
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIEAG 5,876 19,557
1,726 18,081

The movement of net deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

BELERABBEFEEDHOT :

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BET T BT T
At 1 April RIMA—H 18,081 21,101
Credited to consolidated RirEREERNA
income statement A (2,546) (3,020)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 30(a)) U &K E A 7] (I 7E30(a)) 2,419 =
Disposal of interests in subsidiaries k=P gl V= NG 3
(note 31(a)) (Fff=E31(a)) (16,228) =
At 31 March R=A=+—H 1,726 18,081

The movements in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities without
taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax
jurisdiction are as follows:

BEEBREEREEHARE L BV EEE
AR FLAERA 2 G EEI T

Deferred tax assets: EERIBEEE -
Tax Tax losses
depreciation and others Total
BHEBFER
BIETE Hith e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BMF BT T BT
At 1 April 2009 RZZEZNAFMHA—HB - - -
Credited to consolidated RERE WK AT A
income statement 1,141 400 1,541
At 31 March 2010 R-ZZE—ZTF=RA=+—H 1,141 400 1,541
Credited to consolidated RERE WK AT A
income statement 422 180 602
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 30(a)) U fE KB A 7] (M zE30(a)) 470 1,318 1,788
Disposal of interests in subsidiaries HEFEHE AR 2 s
(note 31(a)) (ft5E31(a)) (107) - (107)
At 31 March 2011 RZE——F=ZA=+—H 1,926 1,898 3,824
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29 DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29 EFERIIE (&)

Deferred tax liabilities: EERIEEE
Tax Favourable
depreciation Trademarks leases Total
BIENTE [k BAHEE HE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BET R BET T BET T
At 1 April 2009 R-ZZZThFMA—H 1,575 19,526 = 21,101
Credited to consolidated income statement R 4R A& Was & AT A (177) (1,302) - (1,479)
At 31 March 2010 RZE—TF=A=+—H 1,398 18,224 - 19,622
Credited to consolidated income statement R4 & WE K AEA (1,325) (497) (122) (1,944)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 30(a)) WeBE Fft B 2 &) (Mt £ 30(a)) - 2,251 1,956 4,207
Disposal of interests in subsidiaries I B BB A B 2 i
(note 31(a)) (KTzE31(a)) - (16,335) - (16,335)
At 31 March 2011 R-ZE-——F=H=+—H 73 3,643 1,834 5,550

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not recognise
tax losses of HK$278,268,000 (2010: HK$306,759,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised
tax losses are losses of HK$8,822,000 (2010: HK$42,416,000) which
will gradually expire by 2015. Other tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 15 December 2010, the Group entered into an agreement in relation
to the share exchange transaction (the “Share Exchange”) involving the
exchange of an independent third party’s 60% interest in Metro Point
Enterprises Limited (“Metro Point”) for a 40% interest in Sinochina
Enterprises Limited (“Sinochina”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, Sinochina was required
to issue 400 new shares to the independent third party that resulted in
an effective disposal of a 40% interest in Sinochina by the Group to the
independent third party (the “Sinochina Disposal”) in exchange for the
total issued share capital of Metro Point from the independent third
party to Sinochina (the “Metro Point Acquisition”). The transaction
was completed on 21 December 2010 (the “Completion Date”) and the
Group and the independent third party respectively hold 60% and 40%
of interest in Sinochina.

As part of the Share Exchange arrangement, an amount of
HK$24,920,000 was paid by Sinochina to the independent third party as
partial repayment of the amount due to the independent third party by
a wholly owned subsidiary of Metro Point before the Share Exchange. In
this regard, HK$9,968,000 (40% of HK$24,920,000) is deemed as part of
the consideration paid and proceeds received.

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited

30
(a)

RIEHR AR R EFNRIFEF A KETHE
FTeEAE ASEB Y AERTEEE RSB
278,268,000 7T ( = & — T F : 7 306,759,000
T) e AR BEESEFEEER=_ZE—A2F
HAS 2 B 18 78 %5 8,822,000 T ( — T — T4 : 5
#42,416,0007T) © F b 75 I8 E5 18 A £ fR B 45 95 o

XBe6t

RZZE—ZF+_A+HAB REEFZ
ek © WA &I % = 5 7 Metro Point
Enterprises Limited ([ Metro Point]) Z 60% 42 2=
R B 2 E [ff & A 7] Sinochina Enterprises
Limited ([ Sinochinal) Z40%# @ Z I 7 &
BRB(RHRIR]) - RIBEZBHE 2GR
Sinochina 7B [ ¥8 3 58 = 75 # 1T 400 i #T pX 15 -
BYAEE M E = B LS Sinochina Z
40% fE 7= ([ Sinochina & FIE ) B FE =
75 Z ¥ Metro Point 2 2 FE BT ([Metro
Point i =18 |) F Sinochina ° ZR HER =
—ZTF+ A=+ —HZEKBHDEK - m
NE B R IEILE = 75 7 BllFF A Sinochina Z 60%
K 40% HE 2% ©

EBRHB R BEL PR —3B5 + Sinochina [ 38 32
=77 X 5 %5 24,920,000 7T 1E A& AR 15 2 A AT
Metro Point 2 BB A RIENBYE=HEE
RIBZ—E5 o gt mE A% 9,968,000 7T (75
% 24,920,000 7T 2 40%) W 1% B E TR E R E K
R8sk B2 —35 °
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30 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(a) (continued)

(i) Details of the net assets attributable to the Metro Point Acquisition

are as follows:

&6 M B WOk I G

30 #¥¥e6tw@

(a) (&)

40% of the fair value of Sinochina
valued by an independent valuer
at the Completion Date

Add: Deemed consideration paid

Less: 60% of the fair values of net
assets acquired (as shown below)

Goodwill arising on
the Metro Point Acquisition

(i) Metro PointWIEZIBE(EEEFEZFHIB
U
HK$°000
ST
PR 5ERK B B8 37 {4 18 Al ¥ Sinochina
A AAE40% 2 fH1E
24,299
m:R\RAEENKRE 9,968
34,267
BB EEFEARE
2 60% (70T AR ) (14,379)
Metro Point Y B8 = 18 &= 4
2B

Goodwill is attributable to the service team acquired and synergies
are expected to arise from the Metro Point Acquisition.

The net assets of Metro Point acquired are as follows:

19,888

BECEEETRERNATEE 2 IREEK
&?EE,HHE’SMetro Point {5 EIRIRE L Z
() 2 &

T Y B8 Metro Point & E FEWT :

Carrying
amounts Fair values
R E A ARE
HK$’000 HK$’000
ok i 75 T I
Property, plant and equipment M BE REE 50,802 50,802
Trademarks iz - 13,639
Favourable leases BHNHEE - 11,855
Interest in an associate BTG — B A2 #Ex 841 1,064
Inventories FE 3,729 3,729
Debtors, deposits and prepayments IR - FHE S RIE N A 29,373 29,373
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 35,643 35,643
Pledged bank deposits BEEMIRITER 835 835
Creditors, deposits and accruals IR EAKE LTEREH (43,208) (43,208)
Dividend payable JE 1T s B0 (8,615) (8,615)
Amount due to an BRBYE=F2
independent third party A (7,485) (7,485)
Amount due to Sinochina JE {5t Sinochina 2 VA (50,057) (50,057)
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHasE (3,369) (3,369)
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) EEFBEE/(BE) 1,788 (2,419)
Non-controlling interests I B 2 (7,822) (7,822)
2,455 23,965
Non-controlling interests recognised 1A Metro Point 4 % == I8 1& P 37
upon the Metro Point Acquisition Z IR (9,586)

Metro Point contributed post-tax losses of HK$262,000 to the
Group for the period from the Completion Date to 31 March 2011.

Had the Metro Point Acquisition occurred on 1 April 2010,
the Group’s revenue and profit after taxation for the year
ended 31 March 2011 would have been HK$606,786,000 and

HK$159,122,000 respectively.
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Metro Point H ek HEifEE — T ——4F =
A=+ —BAAEHEERBEERAEE
262,000 JT °

fiid Metro Point Wi EEN — T —ZF Y A
—A¥4E AEFHE_T——F= A
=+t —BUEFEZRARREE G S
Bl 575 15 606,786,0007T 5 7885 159,122,000 7T, ©
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30 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 0 ¥BEFH @

(a) (continued) (a) (&)
(i) Details of the net assets attributable to the Metro Point Acquisition (i) Metro Point WiE EIRE(EEEFE 2B
are as follows: (continued) OS]

AREZTER 2 Sinochina & E18 7 25 10

The gain on the Sinochina Disposal recognised in equity is as

follows: s ¢
HK$’000
BET T
40% of net assets disposed of: FTHH & & E R E 2 40% :
Property, plant and equipment ¥ - BE K& 9,880
Goodwill kS 17,016
Trademarks [k 3,653
Interests in associates Fr{hit & A el 2 #am 397
Inventories T8 1,365
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWIRER - F RS RIERFRIE 5,737
Amounts due from JFE W () 24 Bff Jo8 2 =]
fellow subsidiaries ZRIE 11,271
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEZFED 7,717
Creditors, deposits and accruals ERIRZE  FARE RBRER (5,009)
Investment at fair value RERIRER L ERE
through profit or loss ZRE (8,164)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FE T [R] Z B |88 A B 2 5RIB (2,115)
Dividend payable FEA A% B (8,258)
Deferred income REHA (96)
Provision for taxation TIRR AR (1,276)
Deferred tax liabilities FERIEEE (288)
31,830
Less: 60% of the fair value of B PATERK B HAYE 37 (& (B R
Metro Point valued by Metro Point 60% 2 73 6,2 & &
an independent valuer at
the Completion Date 24,299
Deemed proceeds received BAEBWFERIE 9,968
Gain on disposal recognised in equity RiERERZ B E W 2,437

(i) ¥t Metro Point WIEEHE 2R & KR & EE

(ii) Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the

Metro Point Acquisition: YR A FERE DT -
HK$’000
BETT
Net cash inflow arising from Metro Point l-lg BEIRZ
the Metro Point Acquisition WEMAFHE 35,643
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30 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(b) On 2 October 2009, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share
capital of Great Dragon Petroleum Limited (“Great Dragon”) from
independent third parties (the “Great Dragon Acquisition”).

(i) Details of the net liabilities attributable to the Great Dragon
Acquisition are as follows:

0 ¥¥S0tm@m
w)ﬁf77h¢+ﬂ 8 AEEWBLE

WEEERAHARAR(ERE)HEHEE

BA(EEKESE]) -

() BERUWESZEZEGABERFENFBNOT:

=7
1T

HK$’000
BETT
Purchase consideration: WS HRAE
Cash consideration ReERE 5,000
Direct expenses relating to EHERNEFENEES Y
the Great Dragon Acquisition 111
Fair values of net liabilities acquired FBABBREZAAE 6
Goodwill arising on ERWRBEFRELAZEE
the Great Dragon Acquisition 5,117

The net liabilities acquired are as follows: FE e EFEmT
Carrying
amounts Fair values
MR EE ARE
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BT T
Other creditors and accruals H i ERAIRRRIERE A 6 6

(ii) Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the (i) REEREBEHELRERRAEEENOR
Great Dragon Acquisition: HFEI
HK$°000
BT
Purchase consideration settled in cash NB &2 WERE 5,000
Direct expenses relating to FHMERBBEE
the Great Dragon Acquisition HEEZH 111
Net cash outflow arising from EREkEEEY
the Great Dragon Acquisition W& FEE 5,111
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31 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Disposal of interests in subsidiaries — Pacific Coffee (Holdings)
Limited
On 29 June 2010, the Group entered into an agreement to dispose
of its 80% equity interests in Pacific Coffee (Holdings) Limited and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Pacific Coffee Companies”) to China
Resources Enterprise, Limited (“CRE”). The completion of the
disposal took place on 7 July 2010, upon which the Pacific Coffee
Companies ceased to be subsidiaries of the Group and were accounted
for as associated companies of the Group. A gain of HK$217,361,000 is
recognised in this disposal.

31 HEMBLQA
(a) HE LM EB Q7 2R —Pacific Coffee

(Holdings) Limited
RZZT—ZFFAA=Z+NHB ANEBFTLH
o REBAEERARTEADHEER
Pacific Coffee (Holdings) Limited M E [} /& A &
(& 78 [ Pacific Coffee Companies |) Z 80% A% ©
HERZZ—ZF+ AL HEMK * A% Pacific
Coffee Companies ™ R A S E 2B AT - I
AIRFIEARERE 2B & QA - 2 &S e B8
217,361,000 7T B 1 FE R ©

HK$’000
BT
Total consideration satisfied by: BREUATIIFIESA
Cash received BER & 326,640
Fair value of 20% retained interest in T Pacific Coffee Companies
the Pacific Coffee Companies 20% 1R B IRIEEY A 72 (B 53,095
Put option value (note (i)) RonEREEAE (MEad)) 36,360
Professional fees and expenses EEBARXH (3,000)
413,095
Net assets disposed of: BEHEZEERE :
Property, plant and equipment M - BB MR E 40,676
Goodwill kS 34,260
Trademark Bk 99,000
Inventories EAS 7,879
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWIRER - FHiiRe RIENFRIE 38,148
Current income tax recoverable & B UL E TS 683
Cash and bank balances & RIRTT R 26,674
Creditors, deposits and accruals ERIRZ FARS RTERER (25,385)
Deferred income REHA (8,315)
Deferred tax liabilities REBHEAR (16,228)
Net assets at the date of disposal REERBzEEFE 197,392
Exchange fluctuation reserve i & P 3R SN 3 4
released upon disposal FEEE (1,658)
195,734
Gain on disposal of interests in HEPTHME R R ER 2
subsidiaries (note (ii)) Yo as (P EE (ii)) 217,361

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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31 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) Disposal of interests in subsidiaries — Pacific Coffee (Holdings)

Limited (continued)

Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of

31 HEME QA
(a) HE LM EB Q7 2R —Pacific Coffee
(Holdings) Limited (%)

HEMEMNBARERZRE MRS EEYR

the disposal of interests in subsidiaries: NFEDH
HK$°000
ST
Cash consideration received BWERRERE 326,640
Less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed B EHERERBEEEEY (26,674)
Less: Professional fees and expenses paid B ENEXBERARIH (3,000)
Net cash inflow in respect of the disposal of HEMEMERR 2 ER L
interests in subsidiaries REMAFRE 296,966

Notes:

@

(ii)

Put option value

Pursuant to the shareholders agreement dated 7 July 2010, CRE has granted a put
option to the Group to sell the issued share capital of Pacific Coffee (Holdings) Limited
(“PCC”) retained by the Group within three years. The exercise price of the put option
is the higher of (i) HK$81,660,000, and (ii) 12.1 times of the earnings before interest,
tax, depreciation and amortisation as shown in the audited consolidated income
statement of the Pacific Coffee Companies for the latest financial year prior to the
exercise of the put option multiplied by the percentage of shareholding of the Group
in PCC.

The fair value of the put option at the date of grant was assessed by Jones Lang LaSalle
Sallmanns, a firm of independent valuers, using the Binominal Option Pricing Model.
The significant inputs into the model are value of the equity interest at the grant date,
exercise price, expected life of the option, annual risk-free rate and expected volatility
which was based on the statistical analysis of volatility of weekly share prices of
comparable companies over the last three years before the grant date.

Gain on disposal of interests in subsidiaries

The gain on disposal of interests in subsidiaries included the gains of HK$203,744,000
on the 80% equity interest sold (net of professional fees and expenses) and
HK$13,617,000 on re-measurement of the 20% retained equity interest.
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(©)

(ii)

e

Ron i EE
BER-_FT—ZTFLALATIZREGE  EA8IE
BRPFAEEREEE  UR=ZFRAIHEAEERE
2 Pacific Coffee (Holdings) Limited (“PCC”) B Z 1T %A ©
Roh R ZITEER T 2R BE (1) B 81,660,0007T:
R (i) A 17 58 7R 0 HB #E Bl 2 & 3 — {8 B B 4F & Pacific
Coffee Companies Z {8 & %47 & Wi KFTR Z R FIE
BIE - T E RBHAT R8T 2 121 6% - RAKRKE (S
PCCZREB DL °

R HEARE RS Z AR BB LG EMTFER
TAMBRARN-AAPREEEHEATH - EX 2
EZRABBREERERRHAMZEE  1TRE
B2 EHFH  ERRFENERRARBEZ(THRE
AELRARNKEE A =FAGEREZKEE
EHESITEH)

& BTG T B R Al A i 2 s

5 BT B A I a5 2 IR 2S5 B E B 6 80% A AE 2 UK
HONBRBEE AR ) #1203,744,000 7T R EF 5t 2
20% R BB AR 4 2 Wt 25 4 # 13,617,000 TT ©
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31 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 31 HEME A @)

(b) Disposal of a subsidiary — Chevalier iTech (S) Pte Ltd (b) HE& — BB 2 T — Chevalier iTech (S) Pte Ltd
On 17 December 2010, the Company disposed of 100% equity interest RZZE—FFE+_A++H KRR EKs
in a subsidiary, Chevalier iTech (S) Pte Ltd, to a wholly-owned TZREBREZGRERA AT Z —BE2EMNER
subsidiary of its ultimate holding company at a consideration of HK$6. AHE—E W% 7] Chevalier iTech (8) Pte Ltd
A gain of HK$1,895,000 is recognised in this disposal. )2 BP AR AN M 25 o 7% HH B W% R 85 1,895,000

TTE %BZ ﬁg s °©
HK$’000
BET T
Total consideration satisfied by: BREATIF A :
Cash received BEIR& -
Net assets disposed of: BEHEZERE }% g :
Cash and bank balances Re MIRITHEH 3
Debtors and deposits FEWIR R R A iR & 166
Net assets at the date of disposal REERBZEEFE 169
Exchange fluctuation reserve & BT 835 2 SNE
released upon disposal FENE (2,064)
(1,895)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HKE ARz ks 1,895

(c) On 26 March 2010, the Company disposed of 100% equity interest () B= TE=ZR=+/"H KRR EHKS
in a subsidiary, Sharp Goal Management Limited, to a wholly-owned TI: Z 1JQ ff |"’J HEHRERARZ —B2EHEB
subsidiary of its ultimate holding company at a consideration of HK$8. A &) it & — [E Mt B 2 7] Sharp Goal Management
No gain or loss is recognised in this disposal. Limited #) 2 P AR AN 75 o ﬁ &I R AR M

KEE
32 REPORTABLE SEGMENTS 32 ATEHMDE

Reportable segments are identified and reported in the manner
consistent with internal reports to the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the chief operating decision-marker (the Executive Directors
collectively) in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
The chief operating decision-maker accesses the performance of the
reportable segments based on the revenue and profit/loss presented.

The Group has two reportable segments (i) food and beverages
including restaurant and bar business, and branded coffee shop
business; and (ii) natural resources business including crude oil trading
and mining exploration. Segment revenue is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the consolidated income statement, except
that it also includes the Group’s share of revenue of associates on a
proportionate consolidated basis. In view of the changes in presentation
of reportable segments and segment revenue for the year ended 31
March 2011, comparatives for 2010 have been restated.

In prior years, the branded coffee shop business (included in segment
of food and beverages) and the natural resources were presented as
separate segments in reportable segments. Upon the completion of
the disposal of 80% equity interest in the Pacific Coffee Companies
and the closure of exploration in natural resources business in view
of the current market environment, these businesses are presented as
discontinued operations (note 14). Segments of continuing operations
are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker.

ATEBNOBNEIBELERRE (2B
TER)EMEHNAEEABRENFERE
RAOBRERZ —BAXATUBRNRER - TR
%?ﬁ)ﬁﬁﬁ%*ETFFﬁ%i&ZH&ZA&iﬁ?&ﬂ/l&ﬂé%ﬂ?
BATEBNDBZRA -

AEEEMEEATE2HRNSE  )ER 21
BEEROBIC TS - M&mﬁ%%%%%;&®
FARERER  BRERAESMBEYMZF - 5
BRABRBERGERSRZ —BAHRE
ANEEBFTEEE 2 D R 2 WA TN B4R & 5F A
HWo%FEEWﬁE:E——¢EHE+—
AIEFEZETE2RNDERD BRAHIRE
BT -EELEBHEFEEY -

REF - MBS EB(BRERBERDEN)
&i%ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁ/\ﬁ%iiﬁm/\*Eiﬂtjﬁi
DHE o MARFEE » 1 78 K HH & R Pacific Coffee
CompaniesE’USO%ﬂ&% CREBREENERT
AR IERAERBRFEBE - B EEBL5
RIERFBEEEEBH(MiE14) - IFELEEEBEH
QETRI%A ERFEEZHADBHRE 2 —BHA X
2o
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32 REPORTABLE SEGMENTS (continued) 32

Reportable segment information is presented below:

ATERNDE @
EFESHOHEERZHWT

Year ended 31 March 2011 BE-_ZE——S=A=+—HLFE
Continuing
operations Discontinued operations
BEREER FBEREER
Food and Food and
beverages — beverages -
restaurant branded
and coffee
bar shop Natural
business business resources Sub-total Total
ER-EER B8R
BIEER  MBEEER XAER Nt okl
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETR BETT BT BETR
Revenue A
Group revenue SEKBA 316,266 76,000 - 76,000 392,266
Share of revenue from external customers P B = A ) B AR
derived by associates BEELZWA 59,575 - - - 59,575
375,841 76,000 - 76,000 451,841
Segment (loss)/profit AE(HR)BH (40,442) 1,026 (21,707) (20,681) (61,123)
Included in segment (loss)/profit are: APE(ER)/ENBHE
Share of results of associates iR AN E 2,000 - - - 2,000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13 + B Rkl 2 & (17,884) (3,686) - (3,686) (21,570)
Impairment loss on property, plant mE - BEREEL
and equipment REES (1,960) - - - (1,960)
Impairment loss on goodwill BEZREEE (30,218) - (5,117) (5,117) (35,335)
Amortisation of trademarks [Gleya: 3] (1,207) (1,800) - (1,800) (3,007)
Amortisation of favourable leases BHHEE & (741) - - - (741)
Unrealised loss on investments at fair value RERREARBERE
through profit or loss ZRENRERERE (9,954) - - - (9,954)
Segment assets PREE 375,397 - - - 375,397
Included in segment assets are: PREERS:
Interests in associates Frib B AR 2 s 57,056 - - - 57,056
Amounts due from associates JE Bt i A RIIR 3K 556 - - - 556
Additions to non-current assets (other than ERBEENRE B
financial instruments, including interests IE pEmEkE
in associates, and deferred tax assets) ARl s RET
TIEBERID) 104,776 2,250 - 2,250 107,026
Segment liabilities PEEE 80,386 - - - 80,386
Annual Report 2011 95 =T ——FFf



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 March 2010

&6 M B WOk I G

32 REPORTABLE SEGMENTS (continued)

32 AFERNIBE@

BE_F-FE=A=1—ALFE

Continuing
operations Discontinued operations
FEREE FREREEH
Food and Food and
beverages — beverages -
restaurant branded
and coffee
bar shop Natural
business business resources Sub-total Total
ER-BER Ef-mi2
ERER  MUEER RRER et k]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BB BETT BETT
Revenue O
Group revenue SEKA 238,114 299,909 - 299,909 538,023
Share of revenue from external customers Pk — & B B AMED
derived by an associate BEELZWA 3,797 - - - 3,797
241,911 299,909 - 299,909 541,820
Segment (loss)/profit AE(HR)BH (21,214) 7,611 (3,578) 4,033 (17,181)
Included in segment (loss)/profit are: AE(BR)/ENBE -
Share of result of an associate FiE—FBE R EXE 21 - = = 21
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13 + B Rkl 2 & (16,756) (15,518) (2) (15,520) (32,276)
(Impairment loss)/reversal of impairment loss mE - BEREEL
on property, plant and equipment (RERER)AE
BRED (416) 749 - 749 333
Impairment loss on goodwill BEZREBRE (29,174) - - - (29,174)
Amortisation of trademarks LA 5 (689) (7,200) - (7,200) (7,889)
Unrealised gain on investments at fair value RERERAAERELZ
through profit or loss RENRER N R 26 - - - 26
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investment I HE Z R EHAERE  (2,345) - = = (2,345)
Segment assets PREE 177,008 253,135 5,180 258,315 435,323
Included in segment assets are: PREERS:
Interest in an associate i — B E R B 2 B 932 = = = 932
Amount due from an associate JEU — R B A BIIR X 142 _ - _ 142
Additions to non-current assets (other than ERBEERE (MBIE -
financial instruments, including interest BEME—HEE LR
in an associate, and deferred tax assets) B RELERIBEERIN) 18,443 12,039 5,140 17,179 35,622
Segment liabilities 2EEE 43,914 17,554 310 17,864 61,778

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
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32 REPORTABLE SEGMENTS (continued)

Reconciliation of segment (loss)/profit to profit/(loss) before taxation is

32 BFERN D E@

SE(ER), (a8 F REHRANET, (B1R) iR

provided as follows: s
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
FRESEEK FRECEEY am
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
—E--F —E-%f —E--F —E-Zf —E--F ZT-%F
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT BT T BETT BT T BETT
Segment (loss)/profit FE(BR)/BA (40,442) (21,214) (20,681) 4033 (61,123) (17,181)
Finance income BBBA 860 73 2 8 862 81
Finance costs B & (16) (219) - - (16) (219)
Unallocated corporate income RABERARBRA 518 380 - - 518 380
Unallocated corporate expenses APBEARTH (11,084) (5,077) - = (11,084) (5,077)
Gain on disposal of HEMEHE AR
interests in subsidiaries Rz W - = 217,361 = 217,361 =
Gain on disposal of HE -8
a subsidiary RAlZWE - - 1,895 - 1,895 =
Profit/(loss) before taxation BHATRR/ (FB) (50,164) (26,057) 198,577 4,041 148,413 (22,016)
Segment assets and liabilities are reconciled to total assets and liabilities DREENBBRAEBERABNHIIRNAT:
as follows:
2011 2010
—2——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$°000
EMTR BET T
Segment assets PEEE 375,397 435,323
Cash and bank balances /e MIR1THES 30,000 65,883
Deferred tax assets REFLIEE &= 4,150 1,476
Other unallocated assets HiRDBEE 332 424
Total assets BEE 409,879 503,106
2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Segment liabilities PEEE 80,386 61,778
Deferred tax liabilities EETRIE A E 5,876 19,557
Bank borrowings HRAT &K - 16,500
Other unallocated liabilities BEARDEARB 949 1,924
Total liabilities wEE 87,211 99,759
Geographical information wWEER ; .
The Group’s operation in food and beverages business is carried out AEBREE RN RPT - IR RFER

in Hong Kong, Australia, Macau, Singapore and Mainland China. The
natural resources business is carried out in Mainland China.
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32 REPORTABLE SEGMENTS (continued) 32 AFERND B @m
The associates’ operations in food and beverages business are carried out B AR E B - FT0 1)35 o R B A b i 25 R
in Hong Kong, Singapore and Mainland China. e
Segment revenue by geographical market (including the Group’s share 123 [ T 35 B D A (81 78 & B P4 Bt &
of revenue of associates) is shown in below: NAEIZWA) T ¢
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
REREER FRELERR a8
Company Company Company
and and and
Year ended 31 March 2011 subsidiaries  Associates Total ~ subsidiaries  Associates Total ~ subsidiaries  Associates Total
BE - ARAR KRFR KRAR
ZREt-HLEE WEAR  BELT B WEAFY  BEAF 28 HWEAR  BEAR ag
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETn  BETn BMTr BETIn BMTn AMTn A¥Tn BETn BEIx
Hong Kong B4 269,724 57,385 327,109 72,251 - 72,251 341,975 57,385 399,360
Australia 2N 31,57 - 31,057 - - - 31,057 - 31,057
Macau 2K 15,285 - 15,285 - - - 15,285 - 15,285
Singapore il - 1,779 1779 3,365 - 3,365 3,365 1779 5,144
Mainland China HER - 411 411 384 - 384 384 411 795
316,266 9575 311 76,000 - 6000 392,266 9575 451,841
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
HELEER FREMEEH a8
Company Company Company
and and and
Year ended 31 March 2010 subsidiaries  Associates Total  subsidiaries  Associates Total  subsidiaries  Associates Total
82327 AR KRR KT
ZA=T-ALLEE WEBAR  BEAR B  WEAY  BELH Bg  HEAF  BELA %
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
ARTT  RETn  ABTn  AEfrn  BETn AT BT A%Tn AT
Hong Kong & 238,114 3,797 241911 284,799 - 284,799 522913 3,797 526,710
Singapore FigIbd - - - 12,860 - 12,860 12,360 - 12,860
Mainland China RE A - - - 2,250 - 2,250 2,250 - 2,250
38114 3797 M9 299909 S99 5B 3797 54L80
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32 REPORTABLE SEGMENTS (continued)
The Group had no inter-segment sales for the years ended 31 March
2011 and 2010.

32 BFERN D E@
BE-_T——GR-_T-TF=A=+—H8I
FREF - AEEYES AR R E o

HE-2-——FR-F-TE=A={—AL
G BWEFHEREBRAR0%RA -

UTRRitEE s 2 AKERWHETA(BRE
PGB N R 2 2 ) RORIER IR & E /) IE R
fr

No customer accounted for 10% or more of the total revenue for the
years ended 31 March 2011 and 2010.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s carrying amounts of non-
current assets other than financial instruments (including interests in

associates) and deferred tax assets by geographical location: FEEMRBMEDN
2011 2010
—2——fF —E-TEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEF BT
Hong Kong BE 137,650 309,494
Macau el 29,047 =
Australia BN 14,194 =
Mainland China AR B A i 6 47
Singapore 03K - 1,021
180,897 310,562
33 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 33 EERERITHRAEZHE
MANAGEMENT
Directors’ emoluments EEME
Emoluments paid and payable to the Directors of the Company are as EXfMRENAAFRESEZMEMT
follows:
2011
—B--F
Retirement
Salaries benefit
Directors’ and other scheme
fees benefits contribution Total
FERk BHRER
EExwe HME\EN FEER wEE
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
BMTR  EBTR  BMTR  BETx
Executive Director: HITESE:
Lily Chow EESIE - 1,212 91 1,303
Chang Wan Lung, Robert IR EH - 1,620 12 1,632
Fan Amy Lizhen (note a) BB A (fizEa) - 597 8 605
Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie (note a) skE 1B (fizta) - 597 8 605
Independent BYFHITES:
Non-Executive Director:
Wau King Cheong PHEE 2 150 - - 150
Leung Kwong Kin RiE 150 - - 150
Lau Kai Shu, Frank 2| K AR 150 - - 150
450 4,026 119 4,595
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33 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 33 EERGERITBRAEZME @)
MANAGEMENT (continued)
2010
e
Retirement
Salaries benefit
Directors’ and other scheme
fees benefits contribution Total
\ Hek  EKERN
EFne  ARER  HEEX %
HK$’OOO HK$’OOO HK$’000 HK$’000
BMFT  BMTR MR AMTR
Executive Director: HTES:
Lily Chow R - 1,212 91 1,303
Chang Wan Lung, Robert RERE = 1,540 11 1,551
Fan Amy Lizhen (note a) #EE (fa) - 497 6 503
Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie (note a) &3 18 (fista) - 497 6 503
Independent BYFHTES !
Non-Executive Director:
Wau King Cheong S 120 - - 120
Leung Kwong Kin 2, ii 120 - - 120
Lau Kai Shu, Frank 2% 120 = = 120
Shinichi Yonehara (note b) KEE— (D) 120 = = 120
480 3,746 114 4,340
Notes: B 5
(a)  Appointed on 2 October 2009 and resigned on 6 November 2010. (@) M= ?1; FTA-HEZERR-_ZE—ZF+—A
NEBHE ©
(b)  Resigned on 31 March 2010. b) R-ZE—ZTE=ZA=+—HEF-
Dr Chow Yei Ching, Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar and Mr Kuok Hoi Sang ATREEL  BBELREREBERE W&
did not receive directors’ emoluments from the Company (2010: nil) MARGREMBARKNESEHE (== —
and its subsidiaries. TE T
These Directors are also directors of CIHL, the ultimate holding & s - 5?% %i@ﬁﬁaﬁ% ZERARETBER 2
company, and are paid by CIHL in respect of services provided to the EX HLERTRERAETBERE g%%( ()
CIHL Group as a whole, including the Company and its subsidiaries. ﬁfgﬁ AREMBARD REZRFARES
N # o
Employees’ emoluments & % M
The five highest paid individuals included two (2010: two) Directors, Gk ﬁ% AT BEMRA(Z EE N GE2D)
details of whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments paid to B pEsMeF | %C JiZlII LR EEZ ] %
the remaining three (2010: three) highest paid individuals for both years B ft ?T" ﬁ% T=%(ZF—FF: =ZR)RaH
are as follows: AT ZHMEmT
2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET R BET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ ~ 28 M E /rﬁl b=l 3,532 4,161
Contribution to retirement schemes RIKE T8 Z K 169 153
3,701 4,314
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

33

EERERTHRAEZME @)

The emoluments of the remaining three (2010: three) highest paid HBR=%(ZT—ZF: =R)&a g ATAZ
individuals fall within the following bands: CHEED R T 5 U A7l
2011 2010
—E2——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT
Nil — HK$1,000,000 — 781,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 78 % 1,000,001 7T — & ¥ 1,500,000 7T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 % 1,500,001 7T — 7 ¥ 2,000,000 7T 1 1
3 3
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 34 AREE
As at 31 March 2011, the Company had no contingent liabilities. As at HE-_ZE——F=A=+—H AR_FWEK
31 March 2010, the Company had contingent liabilities in respect of REBE-BE_T—ZF=A=+—H A2Q
guarantees issued for banking facilities of amounts up to HK$19,686,000 AL E 2 BN A B TIRITRE. ZET i
granted to its wholly-owned subsidiaries. R A BE LR BB 19,686,000
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35 BAENE
As at 31 March 2011 and 2010, the Group and the Company had no HE_Z——FR_F-TF=A=+—8"
capital commitments. N SEY SN IS E‘E fa] & 7R AAHE o
OPERATING LEASES 36 MEMHE
The Group as lessee AEBEBRAA

The Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of renting of premises
which fall due as follows:

AEEREFHERBETAIMEZLEEEE
gﬁ?ﬁﬁé‘*ﬁﬁiﬁzﬁ%ﬁﬁ%éﬁ%ﬁ 49 & v 5
i

2011 2010

=E——F —TFF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT BET T

Within one year R—FRA 72,270 109,556
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EZRFNA 153,433 98,054
Over five years BEEE 64,181 2,779
289,884 210,389

The above lease commitments only include commitments for basic P EAEERFEEABSAE WA EE

rentals, and do not include commitments for additional rental payable
(contingent rents), if any, which are to be generally determined by
applying pre-determined percentages to future sales less the basic rentals
of the respective leases, as it is not possible to determine in advance the
amount of such additional rentals.
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OPERATING LEASES (continued) 36 MEMHEE W)
The Group as lessor KEBERH A
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s coffee machines were ARIREHRR - ANEEMIDE# AL LT E HA -
rented out under operating leases. They were leased out for periods BH_EZE=F - BETARHEIKLEHHEE -
ranging from two to three years. The future minimum lease payments ANEBEN THHBE AR 2 B ERERE
receivable by the Group under non-cancellable operating leases for each ORNE
of the following periods were as follows:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT
Within one year R—FR - 757
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZRENRN - 858
— 1,615
SHARE OPTIONS 37 BRAE
Share option scheme — employee services () BREE - BERK

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted by
the shareholders pursuant to a resolution passed on 20 September 2002
for the primary purpose of providing full-time employees, directors,
part-time employees with weekly work hours of 15 hours or above
and advisors and consultants to the Company or any subsidiary with
the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and
to encourage participants to work towards enhancing the value of
the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. The Scheme will expire on 19 September 2012.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme and any other schemes is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of shareholders’
approval of the Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) or, if such 10%
limit is renewed, at the date of shareholders” approval of the renewal
of the Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum aggregate number of
shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes, must not exceed 30% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue from time to time. The number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to any individual in any
one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
then in issue, without prior approval from the Company’s and CIHL’s
shareholders. Each grant of options to any Director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder must be approved by independent non-
executive directors of the Company and CIHL. Where any grant of
options to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director or any of their respective associates would result in the shares
of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
already granted and to be granted in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
issued share capital and with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 in the
12-month period up to the date of such grant must be approved in
advance by the Company’s and CIHL’s shareholders.

ARElzEEEE([Zat 8 D RE_FTT—
FAA-THBRBZRBRERRRM T2
BV EARBREAMHBARZEZRBES -
EX SEIFTRANERUAEZRBEER
RAATNBERERSBEBARRE 2
Ve E2EERAERSARARERN ZEE
BRI - RS AR R REBERSERE
Zt BN ZE——FNATABEER -

RIRZ T B R E b st 81 AR H 2 B R4 &9 AR 1D
BEBREBRBBARRE T RMD R IR #EZ
TEIE B 10% ([FHERFERZE]) » sk R E
R FAT S AEREE B B2 10% R EET
BB ZBRE - AEREEEKITEZ BIRE
ERETEMBETZEZRMHAE  T5E8B
KRB TREEITZRD30% o RERRE K
HEBRRARE 2 HE4E - RMEM—EEEHF
FAEMERNA L ZBRERNDEE TEBBE
BARAARIBEITZEMNI% - RTEMNES
THARKEERR 2B —BEREHBLEAR
NARETEBR 2B IERNTESIE - HE
MEZREIBLFENTETIHES AN
BMBAIERHZERE EHREERHEH
I+ EARSERATEEER G ERZE
REARE M 21T RS FRIT 2 AR ARG BBAR
7] Z BB 1TRR 78 0.1% & 48 B B 75 ¥ 5,000,000
iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%$@ﬂ&EiE%2%ﬁ$
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 37 BBIRAE ()
Share option scheme — employee services (continued) (a) BRESE — EER®(H)
Options granted must be taken up within 30 days from the date of RIHEREAERE L B AR 30 A A B IEE
grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. An option may be exercised in RES BB 1T A ERER T 2 ERE - 88
accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during the effective MR P AR R e at BERNR 22 51 8l 2 B AR A
period of the Scheme to be notified by the Board of Directors which shall ERRETE - EFSERERBRIELAE -
not be later than 10 years from the date of grant. The exercise price is BB N SERK L BB +F - 17 E
determined by the Directors of the Company, and will not be less than Bl ARR ZEEIEHIRTE * NP RAERF]
the highest of the closing price of the Company’s share on the date of RRp L B EAEB R AT E - AR FR
grant, the average closing price of the share on the Stock Exchange for R R B EIAT 122 5 B 32 Py 7
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant, and the HRTERARRA RN ZEE - ABREERLE
nominal value.
The maximum aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon M ARAT I 2 B 1% B AR T 2 B AT {5 i AT 2% 1T
the exercise of all outstanding options granted would be 171,355,870 ZEREZRDBEE171,355870 AR 1D - REFE
shares. No options have been granted or exercised under the Scheme NI ERBEZ TSR B R TRERE(ZZ—
during the year (2010: nil) and none are outstanding at 31 March 2011. TF )RR _ZT——F=A=+—HIE
RNATIE Z FE A »

Share option — consultancy services (b) BRE - BARS
In addition to the share option scheme — employee services mentioned B B 5 37(a) Pt 2 BB AE AT &1 — 1B B RS I -
in note 37(a), on 10 February 2010, the Company has conditionally RZZE—TF_A+H  ANARA G R R
granted options to two consultants to subscribe for an aggregate of BB L A R A 3£ 150,000,000 A% iR 10 2 B
150,000,000 shares at an initial exercise price of HK$0.30 per share, X - T EBAEBRAB® 030 @ WLITEE
subject to adjustment and an option period of two years from the date Br] T8 MR E R B ARE = B H e
of the option agreement. SR o
The options may only be exercisable after the relevant consultants FEAR AR A AR B B R IR LS RS - ARARAD
have provided the consultancy services and the completion of the RIS E M B A BR A A alm B 2 R R A& T
investments by the Company or its subsidiaries, in terms and conditions iR &% - FRIITE - ARG EE SR QA
to the satisfaction of the Company. The consultancy services include SRENBHREBEERALMBEBBRES -
sourcing for and introduction of investment projects to the Company
and lining up of investors for the said projects.
The fair value per option at grant date is HK$0.0856 and is determined THE RN H B B2 A R (B R % 0.0856
by using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. Jo AT I | S EBEAEE -
No option was exercised or lapsed during the reporting period. RmERA - BIEBREEITRSCRR -
The significant inputs into the Binomial Option Pricing Model are as WIZER | PREEEABAZERBIENT:
follows:
Share price at the grant date HK$0.265 REL B2 RE 75 5 0.265 70
Exercise price per share HK$0.30 BRITEE 71 0.30 7T
Expected volatility 66.46% TEHDR B iR 2 66.46%
Expected life of options 2 years e HA i A% 1 F A 24
Expected dividend yield 0.24% TR B R B 3K 0.24%
Annual risk-free interest rate 0.52% [\ ez 4 A1 & 0.52%
The volatility measured at the standard derivation of expected share RENIEE TR R AR E L R 2 R EEE
price returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share price over the WREERE AR AEA=F28AKREZ
last three years from the grant date. Bat DMt & -
The aggregate fair values of the above granted options amounting to Foi iR BB R 2 A LB A KB % 12,840,000
HK$12,840,000 are to be recognised as share option — consultancy TCS R R A B B AN 2 BB A — B R
services received over the vesting period together with a corresponding % WAERENER  SFABE_Z——F=
increase in equity. The expenses charged to the consolidated income A=T—BILEFEZHEERER I ER/BE
statement for the year ended 31 March 2011 amounted to HK$6,420,000 6,420,000 7T (ZZF —ZTF : B 862,0007T) ©
(2010: HK$862,000).
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38 RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has established various retirement benefit schemes for the
benefit of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in both defined contribution
schemes which are registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Schemes”) and Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes (the “MPF Schemes”) established under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in December 2000. The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees. For members of the MPF Schemes, the
Group contributes 5% of the relevant payroll costs per employee per
month to the MPF Schemes. The ORSO Schemes are funded by monthly
contributions from both employees and the Group at rates ranging from
5% to 7.5% of the employee’s basic salary, depending on the length of
service with the Group.

The Group also participates in the employee pension schemes in
countries or location where the Group operates. The Group is required
to make defined contributions at rates calculated as a certain percentage
or sum of the monthly payroll.

Where there are employees who leave the ORSO Schemes prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. At 31
March 2011 and 2010, there were no forfeited contributions, which
arose upon employees leaving the ORSO Schemes and which are
available to reduce the contributions payable in future years. There
were no forfeited contributions utilised in this manner during both
years. At 31 March 2011, contributions payable of HK$773,000 (2010:
HK$731,000) due in respect of the reporting period were paid to the
various schemes in April 2011.

38

iR R 1R Al
ﬁfl%ﬁ%%&i%@mm E25

REL  NEBE2 HEE R EHFRBERA
qu%‘J1Im1ﬁll>u£ﬂﬂ23%%¥ﬂ{7ku+$w(F’%ﬁF i
AEIDER_ZTTE+— ARBREIEARE
SHBIEPDR Y > B AR H B (HEI%

RaE

iFaourg‘J) Bl EEREBEE R A
HIEAERARERE - RBRESFENKE  Af

Wﬁaiﬁiﬂﬁ’ﬂ K EREEBBEA BRI %
TE - mAReHE BRERASEEFAKERE
BEREMN%ZE75%AEHEE  BTREEFTE

MmiE °

AEBNSEAEBECEXEB ZBARKME 2
EERKESFE - NEBERBEEHN - €5
REBAFMsETESLEE -

AELTEKERNREHBERAFEBERTE
SRB2ESISN  EAEAEEIREEHRK
2R R E——FR-_E—ZTF=fA=+—
B WEAQESTEIKEHBMEL BB
VEFRL R 2 4 2 FE 5 4 30 2 08 W mouﬁﬂﬁfl
FERNTEAGFERE A 22 UWEF -z
——®=A=+—8" #&iHHFEJZfW#\ %
¥ 773,000 (= —ZF : /%%731,00075)5
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39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material transactions entered into during the year and

39 BEEEALTZRS

FREBEEALTIZERR G RNB®E

balances at the end of the reporting period with related parties are as BAR 2 #EBREFIBLR T
follows:
The Group
rE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Transactions x5
Associates: B N A
Management fee income BEEEWA 808 710
Sales of food and beverages BREE 440 =
Subsidiaries: MEaE
Purchase of property, BEWE WE
plant and equipment B - (150)
Management fee paid to a m—fERERMERR XNz
fellow subsidiary (note) EEEA M) (800) (800)
Insurance premium paid to M—ERRMBARZN 2
a fellow subsidiary Rz E - (50)
Rental expenses paid to MEARMB AT R 2
fellow subsidiaries e (213) (283)
Purchase of food and beverages BEER (547) =
Balances iEER
Amounts due from associates & B B i R B IR R 556 142
Amount due to ultimate FEAS BR A FE AR 2 7
holding company R 3K (351) (595)
The emoluments of the Directors and other members of key RAEERN SESREBBEMBFERKEZ
management during the year were disclosed in note 33. B & B BT 5E 33 AR 4K BE o
Note: B 3
Management fee paid in respect of the management agreement entered into with CIHL XNEBRERREHREATERSERTNER RS HE -
Group.
The Company
ARATE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Transactions 5
Management fees charged WCER B /&8 2 & 2
to subsidiaries =|E 1,308 3,621
Balances iEER
Amounts due from subsidiaries I EENGILEE N 164,957 404,129
Amount due to ultimate FE AN BR A PR AR A AR K
holding company (351) (583)
Amount due to a subsidiary JES — B B A AR X (80) =
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40 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

40 FEREREBRMEE

Cash (used in)/generated from operations EE(FA), EEzRE
2011 2010
—E——-F —E-TEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRELRIEF(BE) 148,413 (22,016)
Adjustments for: I
Share of results of associates PGBt & A A1 348 (2,000) (221)
Interest income from bank deposits RITFERZFEHA (862) (81)
Interest income from deposits FitiEe RFENKIEAZ
and prepayments M EWA - (219)
Interest on bank borrowings RITERZ TR 16 219
Depreciation of property, Mz BEREHZ
plant and equipment e 21,570 32,276
Amortisation of trademarks P < B 3,007 7,889
Amortisation of favourable leases BHEE 2 #oH 741 =
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BEERREZ
plant and equipment B85 235 322
Impairment loss/(reversal of M BEREREZ
impairment loss) on property, WEEE, CREEIERE)
plant and equipment 1,960 (333)
Impairment loss on goodwill 8 2 R E &R 35,335 29,174
Impairment loss on available- AHHE 2 RER
for-sale investment AEEE - 2,345
Loss/(gain) on investments at fair RERREAAEREZIKE
value through profit or loss, net MEE () FE 9,954 (3,044)
Gain on disposal of k=P SN R
interests in subsidiaries Z Wz (217,361) =
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary S — B A R 2 e (1,895) -
Provision for inventories FEREBZAIZER
to net realisable value FE - 331
Share option — consultancy BRI — B ARTS
services received 6,420 862
Operating cash flows before LEEREIR 2
movements in working capital KEBHERE 5,533 47,504
Changes in working capital HEEDHE
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FE®RAL,/ (35 n) 1,747 (2,233)
Decrease in debtors, deposits ERIRAR - FHES K
and prepayments SEENE e 7,557 5,246
Decrease in investments at fair RERKREARBEREZ
value through profit or loss BE WA 251 25,541
(Decrease)/increase in creditors, EAER FARESRERER
deposits and accruals CmA) /0 (75,269) 3,293
(Decrease)/increase EEWA
in deferred income CR ) /1 hn (473) 3,333
(Decrease)/increase in amount due JE A SR A AR A AR 3K
to ultimate holding company CRLA),/ 380 (244) 365
Increase in amounts due to FE A FE 4 AR HE 2 IR K
non-controlling interests &N 4,699 =
(56,199) 83,049
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5B W B R I G
41 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 41 TEME AT
Place or Issued and Effective percentage
country of paid up share of issued share
incorporation capital/ capital/registered
or registration/ Class of registered Number of capital held by the
Name of company operation shares capital shares Company Principal activities
AAER i/ g R RHEN  EERARER Rtt8E ARRRACRN 2344
FEX BA/ERERR B4 /ERRE
LEREA
Directly Indirectly
L L]
% %
Cafe Deco Franchise Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 60 Restaurant
BE i EBI0T £E
Cafe Deco Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 60 Restaurant
BE i EBI0T £E
Cafe Deco Macau Limited Macau Ordinary MOP25,000 2 - 60 Restaurant and trading
of food and beverages
BRERRERRAA A i3 BI0EFT REREHES
Cafe Deco Macau Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary HKS60 60 - 60 Investment holding
ERRARE i3 BB REZR
gtal World HK.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$5,000 5,000 - 60 Restaurant and bar
E’ l 0 i3 ABS0T REREL
CD Capital One Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary HKSI 1 - 60 Tnvestment holding
ERRARE i3 BRI REZR
CD Capital Two Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary HKSI 1 - 60 Investment holding
ERRARE i3 BRI REZR
Champ Success (Hon g Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 60 Restaurant
FE(B%) ARAA 0 iR B¥IT 2B
Chevalier Pacific Limited Hong Kong Ordinary ~ HK$200,000,000 200,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and trading
B } - - of food and beverages
REZBARAH Ak BB EB20000,0007 RERRRENES
CL Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary ~ HK$200,000 200,000 = 60 Investment holding
Ak B ERA000T RERR
Eastech Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$6,081,()00 6,081,000 - 80.4 Restaurant and bar
RERRAA B B AW60sL007 EEREE
Giant Dragon (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary  HKS10,000 10,000 = 60 Restaurant
ER(B%)ARAT B R BRI £E
Giant Ocean (H.X.) Limited Hong Kong Ordmary  HKS$200 200 - 804 Restaurant and bar
B (BR)ERLA Bk £ EE0TL RERER
Grand Concept (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordmary  HEK$100 100 - 804 Restaurant and bar
BR(ER)BRAA B i ERI0T EEREE
Great Dragon Petroleum Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 10,000 = 100 Trade of crude oil
and ofl related products
ERARERAA (0 th B 10007 RARERAEEERNES
Igor’s Group Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 60 Restaurant
SAEEERERLA & 2 A¥IT £E
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LA B AR I A

41 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

41 FEMWB QR (®)

Place or Issued and Effective percentage
country of paid up share of issued share
incorporation capital/ capital/registered
or registration/ Class of registered Number of capital held by the
Name of company operation shares capital shares Company Principal activities
AAER i/ g R RHEN  EERARER R#%E ARRRACRN 2344
FEX BA/ERERR B /ERBA
LEREA
Directly Indirectly
L L]
% %
Info Dragon Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 10,000 - 60 Trading and manufacturing
. of food and beverages
EiARAA Ak B AT EREARRE
Legend City Limited British Virgin Islands Ordmary USs1 1 - 60 Investment holding
ABRLIES i3 B REZR
Marson Consultants Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS10 10 - 60 Restaurant and bar
KERABRAT 0 ) BT REREL
Metro Point Enterprise Company Limited ~ British Virgin Islands Ordmary USs1 1 - 60 Investment holding
ABRIES i3 B REZR
New Global (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordmary HKS10,000 10,000 - 60 Restaurant and bar
HiR(ER) BRAT 0 B8 AFI00T REREL
Orient Talent (Hon, Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 60 Restaurant and bar
£7(B%)ARAH BR ) AR ZERER
Pacific York (HX.) Limited Hong Kong Ordmary HKS2 2 - 60 Restaurant and bar
ER(ER) BRAT 0 i3 BT REREL
PC Bar Limited Hong Kong Ordmary HKS2 2 - 60 Catering
0 i3 BT 25
Peak Restaurants Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS100 100 - 60 Restaurant
Bk & EBI0T 2R
Restaurants Management Hong Kong Ordmary HK$! 1 - 60 Restaurants management
(Hong Kong) Limited Bk £ B8 £EER
Restaurants Management British Virgin Islands Ordmary USs1 1 - 60 Investment holding
(Overseas) Limited RBRRES LE 1T RERR
Sharp Rise Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USs1 1 100 - Tnvestment holding
HAARAR ABRIES ) B3 RERR
Sinochina Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands Ordmary USS1,000 1,000 - 60 Tnvestment holding
(Change of name to Cafe Deco RBEAES B LOWET REZK
Holdings Limited on 19 May 2011
R=E-—ERATNE545
Cafe Deco Holdings Limited)
Success Well (HX.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 10,000 - 60 Restaurant and bar
A5 (BB)BRAE Bk & E% 100007 RERER
Super Target (H on | Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordmary HKS100 100 - 60 Restaurant and bar
ER(B8)ARAR & LR BE100T ZERER
World Pointer Limited British Virgin Islands Ordmary USs1 1 100 - Investment holding
ABRIES i3 B REZR
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